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7. Description 

Materials 

Foundation: CONCRETE 
STONE 

Walls: STUCCO 
ASBESTOS 
CONCRETE 
SYNTHETICSNinyl 
MET AL/ Aluminum 

Roof: METAL/Tin 
STONE/Slate 

Narrative Description 

York-Chester Historic District 
Gaston County, NC 

The York-Chester Historic District is located in the city of Gastonia, the seat of Gaston 

County. Gastonia was incorporated in 1877 and replaced Dallas as the county seat in 

1909. Historically, Gastonia's economy has been rooted in the textile industry, but during 

the last quarter of the twentieth century, other companies have established themselves in 

Gastonia and produce hosiery, machinery, electronic components and motor vehicle 

parts. 



The York-Chester Historic District lies just south of downtown Gastonia and 

encompasses roughly 198 acres and 579 primary and 186 secondary resources. The 

district's topography varies from nearly level in the northern portion to more rolling 

terrain in the southern half of the neighborhood. Catawba Creek creates a ravine on the 

west side of the district behind the houses on the west side of Clay Street. The streets and 

avenues north of Garrison Boulevard form an irregular grid pattern, with the north-south 

streets running at a slight diagonal. The streets and avenues south of Garrison Boulevard, 

which were laid out later, consist of curvilinear thoroughfares and side streets. South 

York and South Chester streets are now one-way and are heavily trafficked. 

West Franklin Boulevard and the rear lot lines of properties on the north side of West 

Second Avenue form the York-Chester Historic District's northern boundary. The rear lot 

lines of the properties on the east side of South Street mark the eastern boundary. West 

Tenth Avenue serves as the southern boundary, and the rear lot lines of properties on the 

west side of South Clay Street and West Eighth Avenue form the western boundary. 

Nearly all the land within the district is devoted to single-family residential use 

interspersed with some recent and historic multi-family housing. Two churches and a 

synagogue are located in the York-Chester Historic District, as well as the former Boy 

Scouts Piedmont Council Headquarters. Commercial development has encroached on the 

district at the northern ends of South, York and Chester streets, and some residences in 

the northeastern part of the district, particularly along West Second Avenue, have been 



converted into offices. Gastonia High School, a two-story Tudor Revival building, stands 

on York Street south of Garrison Boulevard. Oakwood Cemetery, an approximately 

seven-acre site established in the late nineteenth century, is on the northern edge of the 

district at the intersection of Franklin Boulevard and South York Street. 

Development in the York-Chester Historic District is fairly dense, although all houses 

have front and back yards and narrow side yards. In some sections of West Second 

Avenue, South York, and South Chester streets yards are larger and setbacks are deeper. 

Most historic dwellings in the district are frame, and sided with weatherboard, brick 

veneer, stone veneer, and other forms of wood and synthetic siding. While two-story 

dwellings are not uncommon, most houses are one- or one-and-one-half stories in height. 

The York -Chester Historic District is a large district encompassing 638 contributing 

buildings-principally dwellings-two contributing sites, the Beal-Ragan Garden 

(#375a) and Oakwood Cemetery (#27), and one contributing structure, a carport at 523 

Harvie Avenue (# 177 a). One contributing building, the former Gastonia High School, 

was previously listed in the National Register in 1983. One hundred and twenty buildings 

and structures do not contribute to the significance of the district. Most of the 

noncontributing buildings were built after the end of the period of significance (1954), 

although a very small number are noncontributing because of alterations that compromise 

their integrity. In total, eighty-four percent ofthe district's resources are contributing. Of 

the 579 principal resources, two percent were built before 1910. Thirteen percent were 

constructed between 1911 and 1920. From 1921 to 1930, the period of greatest building 



activity in the district, a total of twenty-six percent of the principal resources were 

constructed. Between 1931 and 1940, twenty-one percent were built. From 1941 to 1954, 

thirty-one percent were constructed. Seven percent of the principal resources date to 1955 

or later and are noncontributing because of age. 

Setback from the public right-of-way and spatial arrangements vary throughout the 

district. Sidewalks serve most of the neighborhood, but are not found in all sections, 

though their presence or absence does not appear to be an indicator of the wealth or social 

standing of the original residents. In the 500 block of West Second Avenue, one- and 

one-and-one-half-story bungalows built in the 1910s and 1920s are positioned near the 

street and close to one another resulting in a harmonious rhythm of form, massing, and 

materials. In some sections of the district, such as the western portion of West Second 

Avenue, where dwellings stand near the right-of-way, stone and concrete retaining walls 

bordering the sidewalk create a more vertical separation of space between house lots and 

the street. Elsewhere, expansive front lawns such as those of the south side of the 500 

block of West Fourth Avenue create buffers between public spaces and private homes. 

Substantial dwellings on South York and South Chester streets are shielded from the road 

by gardens, well-tended lawns and low stone retaining walls. Most of the commercial 

buildings within the district replaced residences, and thus retain a similar setback from 

the sidewalk. The district's churches, synagogue, school, and the former Boy Scouts 

Piedmont Council Headquarters occupy large parcels at prominent comers. Most 

properties in the district are shaded by a heavy canopy of mature trees. 



Because of the variety of functions of the resources, a wide range of building types, 

forms, and styles are found in the York-Chester Historic District. Regionally-prominent 

architect Hugh White designed buildings throughout the neighborhood. Domestic 

architecture--the predominant building type - is represented by Queen Anne dwellings, 

Colonial Revival houses, bungalows, Foursquares, Period Cottages, Minimal Traditional 

dwellings, Cape Cods, and Ranch houses. Weatherboard and other types of wood, brick, 

and synthetic siding are the most conunon exterior materials for houses. A few apartment 

buildings and duplexes stand among the single-family homes. Garages, sheds, and garage 

apartments accompany some dwellings. Garages are usually one-story, gable-front, 

weatherboard buildings, but some brick outbuildings and garages built to complement the 

dwelling are found behind or to the side of their principal resources. 

Conunercial buildings are limited to the north end of South, South York, and South 

Chester streets and adjacent blocks. These one- and two-story mid- to late-twentieth 

century brick buildings house a variety of businesses. Several historic residential 

properties on West Second Avenue and South Chester Street have been converted to 

offices. The religious buildings in the district display Colonial Revival and Gothic 

Revival design elements. The former Gastonia High School, the only historic educational 

facility, is an imposing two-story Tudor Revival edifice constructed between 1922 and 

1924 with subsequent expansions. 

The earliest dwellings in the York Chester District were built in the late nineteenth 

century. The circa 1882 Carolina Hanna House (#30) at 401 South Chester Street is a 



simple two-story frame building with a side-gable roof and a hip-roof front porch 

supported by Tuscan columus. Other early houses display Queen Anne and Colonial 

Revival elements. The Alpheus R. and Carrie Anders House (#28), built around 1896 at 

219 South Chester Street, is a two-story frame Colonial Revival dwelling with a hip roof 

distinguished by a full-width front porch with Tuscan columus and a two-story 

pedimented central section with sawnwork decoration. The complex roofline, 

asymmetrical massing, and abundant use of stained glass in the circa 1900 Joseph H. and 

May Gray Separk House I (#330), moved around 1920 from West Second Avenue to 316 

South York Street, exemplifY the Queen Anne style. The circa 1910 Mack and Eunice 

Cloniger House (#224) at 510 Lee Street, a Queen Anne cottage with a triple-A roof, 

features a porch embellished with bracketed turned posts and a sawnwork frieze. 

The Colonial Revival style was popular in the York-Chester neighborhood from the 

1910s through the post-World War II period. Full-blown examples are found in the 

Samuel A. and Sue Robinson House (#329) at 310 South York Street and the Barkley­

Meyers House (#402) at 211 West Second Avenue, both desigued by Hugh White. The 

Barkley-Meyers House, built around 1922, is an impressive two-story brick Colonial 

Revival with a low hip roof, a single-leaf entry with leaded-glass sidelights and fanlight, 

a two-story full-width front porch with a full entablature supported by Corinthian 

columus, pilasters, and a dentil and modillion cornice. The Robinson House, constructed 

around 1920, features an elaborate cornice and a semi-circular portico with a gouged 

frieze and oval sunburst corner blocks. The circa 1922 Fred A. and Myrtle Cathey House 

(#405) at 501 West Second Avenue is a more modest example of a Colonial Revival 



dwelling with a hip-roof and a single-leaf entry with sidelights and a transom sheltered by 

a front-gable entry porch. 

A few apartment buildings in the district exhibit the influence of the Colonial Revival 

style. The circa 1929 two-story brick Spurrier Apartment building (#238) at SOl-SOS Lee 

Street has a broad hip roofwith deep eaves, eyebrow attic vents, and multi-pane double­

hung sash. The Edgewood Apartments (#348, 349), built around 1937 on the comer of 

South York and West Eighth streets, are two-story brick buildings with gabled porticoes. 

A variation of the Colonial Revival style-the Dutch Colonial-is present in the 

neighborhood. The circa 1926 Oscar L. and Pearl Sappenfield House (#SI2) at S09 West 

Fifth Avenue features typical Dutch Colonial elements such as a gambrel roof, a large 

shed dormer across the fa9ade, an inset porch, and six-over-one sash. A later example of 

a dwelling with a Dutch Colonial influence is the gambrel-roofed S. Emmett and 

Catherine Morrison House (#18S) at 1006 Hillside Drive. Built around 1947, the one­

and-one-half-story brick dwelling features a fanlight over the front door and a gabled 

front portico with arched ceiling. 

Like most suburban neighborhoods that developed across the state during the first half of 

the twentieth century, the York-Chester Historic District includes an array of period 

revival styles, most notably the English cottage form, also called the Period Cottage, and 

the Tudor Revival style. Side-gable roofs with steeply-pitched front gables, fa9ade 

chimneys, arched doors, and half-timbering in the gables characterize these houses. The 



circa 1922 Arthur C. and Annie Jones House (#511) at 501 West Fifth Avenue presents a 

striking example ofthe Tudor Revival style. The one-and-one-half-story brick house is 

executed in Flemish bond and has multiple gables, a slate roof, and leaded-glass 

casement windows. The more restrained Ed and Alice Adams House (#380), built around 

1925 at 615 South York Street, is an intact example of a one-story Period Cottage with a 

clipped-gable roof, wood shingle siding, an arched door, and a granite fal(ade chinrney. 

Two excellent examples of the Mediterranean Revival style occupy the district. 

Mediterranean Revival houses usually have low-pitched hipped roofs covered with 

ceramic tiles, deep bracketed eaves, arches above large windows and French doors, and a 

symmetrical fal(ade. The Joseph H. and May G. Separk House II (#401), constructed at 

209 West Second Avenue in 1919, is a two-story blonde brick building accented with 

granite quoins, a hipped roof with green tiles, multi-pane double-hung sash, French doors 

with arched transoms, a recessed entry porch with square posts and eave brackets. 

Architect C. C. Wilson of Columbia designed the Separk House with Hugh White as the 

supervising architect. The Beal-Ragan House (#345) at 706 South York Street, designed 

by Hugh White and completed in 1924, features similar elements including blonde brick 

veneer, a tiled hipped roof, French doors, and deep eaves. 

Bungalows and Craftsman-style houses are widespread in the district. The circa 1921 

Robert G. and Mildred Cherry House (#383) at 711 South York Street expresses an Asian 

character in its kicked roofline and wide bargeboards. The deep eaves, low hip roof, 

wide front porch, and combination of weatherboards and wood-shingle siding reflect the 



influence of the Prairie style on the Zoe Rankin House (#328), constructed around 1912 

at 302 South York Street. More typical bungalows include the circa 1928 J. Luther and 

Mamie L. Cely House (#417) at 529 West Second Avenue. A side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, a 

shed-roof front porch with tapered posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, wood 

shingle siding, and triangular eave brackets characterize the one-story frame bungalow. 

The Augustus and Margaret Froneberger House (#148), built at 504 Hanna Street around 

1938, represents another variation of the Craftsman style--the Foursquare. The two-story 

brick house has a hipped roof, a hipped-roof entry porch with square brick posts, a 

screened~in hipped-roof side porch and eave brackets. 

From the late 1930s through the 1950s Minimal Traditional houses-typically modest, 

one-story, brick side-gabled dwellings, often with front-facing gables-appeared in the 

neighborhood. The largest concentration dates to the post-World War II period. The circa 

1951 Devant J. and June S. Purvis House (#71) at 405 South Clay Street is a one-story 

frame Minimal Traditional with a side-gable roof, a projecting front-gable bay, a shed­

roof entry porch, and asbestos siding. The Harry G. and Eleanor Grier House (#96), built 

around 1942 at 1007 Edgewood Circle, is a one-and-one-half-story brick dwelling with a 

side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, a recessed entry with reeded pilasters, and an exterior brick 

chimney. 

A small number of houses in the York-Chester Historic District were constructed in other 

popular national styles such as the Cape Cod. The J. Carr and Mabel M. Elliot House 

(#410), constructed at 515 West Second Avenue around 1942, is a one-story frame Cape 



Cod with a side-gable roof, two gabled dormers, a shed-roof entry porch with square 

posts, and asbestos siding. The circa 1940 Carl and Margaret Currence House (#145) at 

406 Hanna Street is a similar frame example with a side-gable roof, two front-gable 

dormers, end chimneys, aluminum siding, and a side wing with a picture window. 

Ranch houses were built on undeveloped lots in the neighborhood from the 1940s to the 

1960s. The Joseph and Sara Abernethy House (#287), built around 1949 at 910 South 

Street is a one-story, brick house with a side-gable roof, 4/4, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, a recessed 

entry, and a brick chimney on the north gable end between the house and the screened 

side porch. The circa 1954 house at 508 Hanna Street (#150) is a typical one-story brick 

Ranch with a side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal and picture windows and a recessed entry. 

The York-Chester Historic District comprises a well-preserved collection of domestic, 

religious, and commercial architecture from the high point of Gastonia's growth as a 

textile center. Although some of the historic properties have been altered with the 

installation of modem windows and synthetic siding and a small number of modem 

buildings post-dating the period of significance have been constructed, the district retains 

a high degree of integrity. 

INVENTORY 

The inventory list is arranged alphabetically by street name, followed by numerical 

streets in ascending order. For streets than run north to south, the east side of the street is 



presented first. For streets that run east to west, the north side of the street is presented 

first. 

Each resource is designated as contributing or noncontributing to the historic significance 

and integrity of the district. The designation criteria were based on age, condition, and 

degree of alteration. Buildings pre-dating 1954 were considered contributing if they 

retained architectural integrity. Noncontributing buildings were constructed after 1955 

and lack architectural and historical significance. A few buildings built before 1954 are 

considered noncontributing because they have been heavily altered, usually through large 

additions, and therefore have lost their architectural and historical integrity. Vacant lots 

are noted. Each resource is assigned a number and each secondary resource within a 

property is assigned a letter. These number and letter designations are keyed to an overall 

map of the district. 

Each historic property in the inventory is assigned a name, where possible, based on the 

first-known or possibly a long-term occupant. Information about these early occupants 

comes from the Gastonia City Directories located at the Gaston County Library. Dates of 

construction are based on interviews with local residents, city directory research, the 

Sanborn Fire Insurance Company maps, and Gaston County deeds. Some of the city 

directories were published biannually and thus had dates such as 1910-1911. In that case 

the later date, such as 1911, was used as the circa date of construction. In situations 

where City Directories did not cover a street or part of a street until after the resources 

were already constructed or on blocks where the street numbering had changed over time, 



building dates were based on architectural style and, when applicable, on known 

construction dates for similar buildings. Additionally, City Directories are occasionally 

incorrect, which may indicate a construction date later or earlier than that indicated by the 

resource's architectural style. In these rare instances, an estimated construction date is 

based on style and any other available information from maps or interviews. 



SOUTH CHESTER STREET 

East Side 

1. House 
310 South Chester Street, ca. 1910, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights and pilasters, 
partially enclosed wrap-around porch supported by paired posts on brick piers spanned by 
brick kneewall, end and interior chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards, exposed 
rafter ends, series of one and two-story rear additions. City directories indicate a 1924 
construction date, at which time Marcus T. Wilson, an assistant cashier at First National 
Bank, lived here, but stylistically, the house appears to be older. 

2. S. E. and Elizabeth Spencer House 
312 South Chester Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, hip-roof entry porch 
supported by Tuscan columns, enclosed porch on north elevation, interior chimney, 
exposed rafter ends, shed dormer vent on rear elevation, exterior stair to second story, 
one-story rear ell, vinyl-sided addition at rear. S. E. Spencer was a manager. 

2a. Outbuilding 
312 South Chester Street, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entries, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding, exterior stair to second story. 

3. John Spencer House 
316 South Chester Street, ca. 1890, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 4/4 sash, single-leaf four-panel door with arched upper panels 
and decorative bracketed surround, partially enclosed wrap-around porch supported by 
Tuscan columns with second tier across three bays of fayade, interior chimneys, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding over original novelty siding, vinyl-sided one-story kitchen ell. 
John Spencer was a Gastonia contractor who built this house and the Glenn House next 
door. J. F. Jackson, a farmer, and his wife Mary lived in the house by 1911. 

3a. Garage 
316 South Chester Street, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, German siding. 

4. Dr. Lucius and Nena Glenn House 



402 South Chester Street, ca. 1900, Contributing Building 

Two-and-one-half-story, Queen Anne-Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof with projecting 
front and side-gable bays, 111 and Queen Anne windows, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormer, wrap-around porch supported by Tuscan columns, interior chimneys, brick 
foundation, weatherboards, two-story rear ell, stone retaining wall. Dr. Lucius Glenn was 
a physician. 

5. Boyce Office Building 
406 South Chester Street, ca. 1957, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Modernist, brick, flat-roof with concrete coping, casement windows, single­
leaf entry with sidelights, flat-roof entry hood supported by metal post, interior chimney. 
This was the office of Dr. Douglas Boyce, a physician, from 1957 to very recently. 

6. Dr. Hall and Jennie Eddleman House 
410 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, cross-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof 
front porch with brick posts spanned by brick kneewall, porte cochere on south elevation, 
enclosed porch at northeast comer, wood shingles in front gable, interior chimney, eave 
brackets, exposed rafter ends, one-story German-sided shed attached to rear elevation. 
Dr. Hall Eddleman was a physician. 

7. J. Houston and Elizabeth Matthews House 
412 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry with pilasters and cornice, flat-roof 
partial-width front porch with Tuscan columns and metal roof balustrade, end chimneys, 
brick foundation, shiplap siding, scrolled eave brackets, one-story sunporch in southwest 
comer. J. Houston Matthews was the manager of Matthews-Belk. 

7a. Garage Apartment 
412 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip-roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, brick foundation, weatherboards. 

8. J. R. and Margaret Ferguson House 
502 South Chester Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, cross-gable roof, X-plan, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, wrap-around porch 
with Tuscan columns, interior chimneys, brick foundation, asbestos siding, side and rear 
additions. J. R. Ferguson was a farmer. 

8a. Garage 
502 South Chester Street, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, roll-up garage door, masonite siding. 

9. House 
506 South Chester Street, ca. 1910, Contributing Building 

One-story, Queen Anne cottage, frame, hip roofwith front gable over porch, 6/1 sash, 
single-leaf entry, wrap-around porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by wood 
railing, interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards. City directories 
indicate a 1922 construction date, at which time G. C. Andrews, secretary-treasurer of 
Gastonia Bonded Warehouse, and his wife Arlee lived here, but stylistically, the house 
appears to be older. 

9a. Garage 
506 South Chester Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, weatherboards. 

10. W. L. and Pearl Balthis 
508 South Chester Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, Queen Anne cottage, frame, hip roofwith projecting front-gable bays on front 
and side elevation, 111 sash, Eastlake entry with single-leaf door, wrap-around porch with 
Tuscan columns spanned by wood railing, hexagonal bay on north elevation, interior 
chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards, cornice returns, gable vents. W. L. Balthis 
owned W. L. Balthis & Company Cotton Brokers. 

Vacant Lot 

11. L. F. and Mamie Wetzell 
516 South Chester Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with pilasters and broken 
pediment, two front-gable dormers, shed-roof porch with turned posts, interior chimneys, 
brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents, side and rear additions, picket fence. L. F. 
Wetzell was a watchmaker. 

12. E. F. and Ada Glenn 
518 South Chester Street, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-story-on-basement, Queen Anne cottage, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 111 sash, single­
leaf entry, wrap-around porch with Tuscan columns, interior chimneys with corbelled 
stacks, brick foundation, weatherboards, cornice returns, gable vents. E. F. Glenn was a 
dentist. 

13. Benjamin and Mina Lieber 



520 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 6/6 
sash, single-leaf entry, projecting front-gable entry porch with arched opening, enclosed 
arcaded porch at southwest comer, facade chimney, gable vents. City Directories list no 
occupation for the Liebers. 

14. Dr. J. Sydney and Eloise Hood 
526 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, cross-gable roof, 411 and 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry 
with sidelights and fanlight, front-gable dormer, front-gable entry porch with Tuscan 
columns, interior chimneys, gable vents. Dr. J. Sydney Hood was a physician. 

14a. Garage 
526 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, double-leaf garage door, weatherboards. 

15. Ralph and Vida Blanton House 
528 South Chester Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story-one-basement, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with 
projecting front-gable entry bay, 6/6, 8/8 and diamond-pane sash, arched single-leaf 
entry, hip-roofed side porch with brick posts sparmed by wood railing, facade chimney, 
gable vents, shed dormer on rear elevation, rear deck. City Directories list no occupations 
for the Blantons. 

16. Pauline Trout House 
602 South Chester Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story-on-basement, Colonial Revival, brick, front-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, front-gable portico with Doric columns and arched gable vent in pediment, end 
chimney, gable vents. Pauline Trout was a stenographer at the Arthur C. Jones Company. 

17, Yates and Alie Smith House 
604 South Chester Street, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

Two-story-on-basement, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry with sidelights, two-story flat-roof front porch supported by tall square posts and 
pilasters. Yates Smith was a mechanic. 

18. House 
608 South Chester Street, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 



One-story, frame, cross-gable roof with projecting front-gable entry bay, 6/6 and 9/9 
sash, single-leaf entry, gable vents, brick foundation, T -11 siding, brick front patio with 
brick lattice railing. 

19. Ray and Hazel Leslie House 
610 South Chester Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, Queen Anne-Colonial Revival cottage, frame, hip roof, multi-light-sashll 
sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights and transom, hip-roof dormer with exposed rafter 
ends, bay windows on north and south elevations, wrap-around porch with truncated 
posts on brick piers, interior chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards. City Directories 
list no occupations for the Leslies. 

20. Myrtle Glass House 
612 South Chester Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
III and picture windows, single-leaf entry, shed-roof front porch supported by metal 
posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Myrtle Glass was a widow. 

20a. Garage/Shed 
612 South Chester Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, three open garage bays, exposed rafter ends, attached to frame shed. 
This building straddles the property line between 612 and 614 South Chester Street. 

21. J. B. Reeves Duplex 
614 South Chester Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, screened comer porch, interior chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gable 
vents. J. B. Reeves owned Reeves Sales Agency, which dealt in general textiles. 

22. Rankin House 
702 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, side-gable roof, 12/1 and 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, shed­
roof dormer, engaged front porch with truncated posts on brick piers, interior chimney, 
brick foundation, weatherboards, eave brackets. Mrs. J. R. Rankin lived in this house in 
1924 and Miss Emma Rankin in 1928. 

23. Avery Ted and Marian Cashion House 
704 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof with projecting front-gable bays on the front and south 
elevations, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof dormer, screened comer porch with 



truncated posts on brick piers spanned by brick kneewall, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents, eave brackets. Avery Ted Cashion worked in sales 
at C. J. Huss. 

24. Clayton C. and Prue Carpenter 
706 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof front porch with 
square vinyl posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, eave brackets. 
Clayton C. Carpenter was the manager of Gastonia Insurance & Realty. 

25. W. E. and Pearle Bealle House 
708 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer with 
eave brackets, engaged front porch with grouped truncated posts on brick piers spanned 
by wood railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, exposed rafter ends. 
W. E. Bealle worked for Henshaw & Sanders, cotton merchants. 

Vacant Lot 

Parking Lot 

26. Pizza Hut 
832 South Chester Street, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame with brick kneewall, hip-roof, fixed metal sash, single-leaf entries. 

West Side 

27. Oakwood Cemetery 
Comer of Franklin Boulevard and South Chester Street, last quarter of the 
nineteenth century, Contributing Site 

Approximately seven-acre city cemetery divided into four quadrants with limestone and 
granite-edged plots, modest gravemarkers as well as obelisks and grave houses, brick 
pillars at South Chester Street entrance, black metal fence on north and east sides, chain­
link fence on south and west sides. Most of the markers are historic late nineteenth and 
early twentieth century stones. Many prominent Gastonians are buried in Oakwood 
Cemetery. 

28. Alpheus R. and Carrie Anders House 
219 South Chester Street, ca. 1896, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, shuttered windows on main block, single­
leaf entry, full-width front porch with Tuscan columns and two-story pedimented central 



section with sawnwork decoration, interior chimney, brick piers infilled with brick to 
form continuous foundation, weatherboards, rear addition with 2/2 horizontal windows, 
hardiplank siding and gable vents. Alpheus R. Anders was a farmer in the Southpoint 
vicinity - he later moved to Gastonia and operated the Gastonia Livery Company on 
Airline Avenue and served as a county commissioner, notary and justice of the peace. 
The house was moved a short distance north of its original location around 1915 when 
Second Avenue was laid out. 

29. First Associated Reformed Presbyterian Church 
317 South Chester Street, 1951 with ca. 1980 rear addition, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, brick, front-gable roof, 12/12 sash, recessed double-leaf 
entry with pilasters and cornice, pedimented portico supported by Tuscan columns, 
massive brick and frame bell tower, one-story rear addition with 111 sash and quoins. 
Connected to education wing by open breezeway with Tuscan columns 

29a. Rebecca Whiteside Miller Building 
301 South Chester Street, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, recessed single-leaf entry with pilasters and 
cornice. \ 

29b. Education Wing 
South Chester Street, 1947, Contributing Building 

Two-story-on-basement, brick, flat roof, 6/6 sash, recessed double-leaf entry with 
transom, pilasters and cornice, stepped cornice above second-story windows. Connected 
to church by open breezeway with Tuscan columns and education building by glass 
hyphen. 

29c. Education Building 
Southwest comer of complex of church buildings, ca. 1980, 
Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, flat roof, 12112 sash, double-leaf entry, stepped cornice, quoins. 
Connected to church by open breezeway with Tuscan columns and education wing by 
glass hyphen. 

29d. Boy Scout Hut 
ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete block, front-gable roof, casement windows, double-leaf entry, vinyl 
siding in gables, gable vents, located at western edge of church complex. 

30. Caroline Hanna House 
401 South Chester Street, ca. 1882, Contributing Building 



Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 111 and 4/4 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, hip­
roof front porch supported by Tuscan columns, brick foundation, weatherboards, gable 
vents, one-story rear ell. Samuel Hanna built this house for his daughter Caroline. 
Caroline, a school teacher, married Peyton Currence. They had no children, so the house 
remained in the Hanna family until 1984. 

31. George and Lossie Hopper House 
403 South Chester Street, ca. 1896, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival cottage, frame, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal and picture 
windows, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch supported by slender posts, interior 
and end chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding, rear addition. George Hopper worked 
at Spencer Lumber Company. 

32. Oak Leigh Townhomes 
407 South Chester Street, 1964, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, brick, 111 windows and recessed entries set into decorative arched panels. 
These two buildings were under construction in 1964. 

32a. Oak Leigh Townhomes 
407 South Chester Street, 1964, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, brick, 111 windows and recessed entries set into decorative arched panels. 
These two buildings were under construction in 1964. 

33. Wade S. and Pearl Buice House 
413 South Chester Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, multi-light sash, double-leaf 
entry, front-gable dormer, front-gable comer porch with dentil and modillion cornice and 
stone posts spanned by stone kneewall, stone end chimney, stone foundation, wood 
shingle siding, triangular eave brackets, exposed rafter ends. Wade S. Buice was 
President ofthe Gastonia Clearing House Association and Vice-President of Third 
National Bank. 

33a. Garage 
413 South Chester Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, sliding garage doors, wood shingle siding, exposed rafter 
ends. 

34. Sarah Hanna House 
501 South Chester Street, ca. 1890, Contributing Building 



Two-story, frame, L-plan, 4/4 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights and transom, wrap­
around porch supported by Tuscan columns, brick foundation, German siding, gable 
vents, two-story rear ell. Samuel Hanna built this house for his daughter Sarah, who 
married Jackson Beard: 

35. Albert and Stella Rankin House 
507 South Chester Street, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, double-front-gable-on-hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry 
with sidelights, hip-roof front porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by brick 
kneewall, interior chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards, gable vents, attached 
garage at rear. Albert Rankin was a salesman. 

36. Julius and Mary Bess House 
509 South Chester Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry 
with sidelights and fanlight, three front-gable dormers with cornice returns and arched 
windows, two-story front portico supported by four Tuscan columns. Julius Bess was the 
manager of Southern Cotton Oil Company. 

36a. Garage 
509 South Chester Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, three open garage bays, weatherboards. 

37. Tobias and Alia McArver House 
511 South Chester Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 311 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, 
front-gable dormer, shed-roof front porch with paired truncated posts on brick piers 
spanned by wood railing, end chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, triangular eave 
brackets, stone retaining wall. Tobias McArver was a farmer. 

38. Walter R. and Lessie Henderson House 
521 South Chester Street, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, gable-on-hip roof with front gable, 111 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, shed-roof front porch with Tuscan columns, interior chimneys, brick 
foundation, weatherboards, stone steps and retaining wall at sidewalk. Walter R. 
Henderson was a life insurance agent. 

39. Arthur M. and Lottie Dixon House 
525 South Chester Street, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 4/4 sash, single-leaf entry, shed donner, engaged front 
porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. Arthur M. Dixon was the superintendent of Trenton Cotton Mills. 

40. Matthew Stroup Jr. House 
529 South Chester Street, ca. 1955, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, brick stoop with 
metal railing, vertical boards in gable ends, gable vents, wheelchair ramp. Matthew 
Stroup Jr. was a physician. 

41. Lucy Payne House 
611 South Chester Street, ca. 1924, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal and picture windows, single-leaf entry, 
front-gable donner, shed-roof front porch with square posts spanned by wood railing, end 
chimneys, brick foundation, TIl siding with wood shingles in gables, gable vents, rear 
addition. Lucy was the widow ofR. L. Payne. 

42. Doris H. and Florence Campbell House 
615 South Chester Street, ca. 1934, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front porch enclosed with 
TIl siding, brick kneewall, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, eave brackets, 
exposed rafter ends, one-story addition. Doris H. Campbell was the manager of the A & 
P. 

42a. Shed 
615 South Chester Street, ca. 1934, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, frame, side-gable roof, TIl siding and weatherboards, single-leaf 
entries. This two-part building straddles the property line between 611 and 615 South 
Chester Street. 

43. Robert H. and Tennie Moser House 
709 South Chester Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Dutch Colonial, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, front-gable entry porch with square posts, interior and end chimneys, brick 
foundation, weatherboards and wood shingles, one-story shed room on south elevation. 
Robert H. Moser was the manager of the Rayless Chain Store. 

43a. Garage 
709 South Chester Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, brick foundation, weatherboards, exposed rafter ends. 



44. Charles P. and Irene P. Nanney House 
807 South Chester Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, L-plan, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, partial-width shed-roof porch with 
replacement square post and wood railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl 
siding. Charles P. Nanney worked at the Orange Crush-Double Cola Bottling Company. 

45. T. M. and Carrie Gault House 
809 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and picture windows, single-leaf entry, brick stoop 
and metal railing, fayade and interior chimneys, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable 
vents, metal awnings. T. M. Gault worked at Pete's Barber Shop. 

45a. Garage 
809 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, gable-front garage with weatherboard siding. 

46. Lilbert H. and Gertrude S. Blevins House 
811 South Chester Street, 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and picture windows, single-leaf entry, flat-roof 
front porch with metal posts and railing, interior chimney with corbelled stack, brick 
foundation, German siding, gable vents. Lilbert H. Blevins was a maintenance man for 
the Public School system. 

47. John C. and Margaret Clemmer House 
813 South Chester Street, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, clipped-side-gable roof with front-gable bay, 3/1 sash, single-leaf 
entry, clipped-front-gable partial-width porch with tapered posts on brick piers, interior 
and end chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. City Directories list no 
occupations for the Clemmers. 

48. House 
815 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, L-plan, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer vent, flat-roof 
entry porch with square post, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Occupied by 
A. H. Haynes, a service manager, and his wife Ethel, and W. T. Huffinan, a clerk at 
Brookwood Service Station, and his wife Madge, in 1931. 

49. Albert and Hazel Nivens House 
817 South Chester Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer vent, 
flat-roof entry porch with vinyl columns, end chimney, brick foundation, aluminum 
siding. Albert Nivens was a salesman. 

50. W. W. and Fannie Simmons House 
819 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 111 sash, single-leaf 
entry, front-gable dormer vent, front-gable partial-width porch with Tuscan columns, end 
and interior chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding. W. W. Simmons worked at 
Laughridge Tobacco and Candy. 

51. House 
821 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Dutch Colonial, frame, side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
entry porch with paired square posts and wood railing, interior chimneys, brick 
foundation, weatherboards, attached carport/deck on north elevation. Occupied by W. M. 
and Lillian Garrison and P. A. Hughes, the collections manager at Rustin-Johnson 
furniture, and his wife Louise in 1931. 

52. Walter L. and Gladys Cunningham House 
823 South Chester Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, 
shed dormer, engaged front porch with square posts spanned by wood railing, interior 
chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding, exposed rafter ends. Walter L. 
Cunningham was a bookkeeper at Gastonia Ice & Coal Company. 

53. Alston and Ollie B. Barker House 
825 South Chester Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof dormer vent, engaged 
front porch with square posts spanned by wood railing, hexagonal bay on north elevation, 
interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, wheelchair ramp. Alston Barker was 
an employee of Swift & Company. 

54. Fred and Louise Ratchford House 
827 South Chester Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 311 sash, single-leaf entry, shed dormer, front-gable 
partial-width porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, interior 
and end chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards with wood shingles in gables, eave 
brackets. Fred Ratchford was a teacher. 



55. E. W. and Lena Risque House 
829 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, clipped-front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, clipped-front-gable 
partial-width porch with vinyl posts and wood lattice railing, end chimney, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding, eave brackets, wheelchair ramp. E. W. Risque was a manager at 
Western Union. 

56. James A. and Kathleen H. Henley House 
831 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal and picture windows, single-leaf entry, 
front-gable entry porch with square posts, side porch with square posts spanned by metal 
railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. James A. Henley was an 
insurance agent. 

57. Duplex 
833 South Chester Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entries, front-gable entry porches 
with tapered brick posts on front and north elevations, brick foundation, asbestos siding, 
exposed rafter ends. Occupied by James S. Trogden, an engineer at Brown-Henry 
Company, Inc., and his wife Lula in 1928. Occupied by A. C. Brown, a salesman, and his 
wife Ruth, and B. E. Ratchford, a driver, and his wife Mae in 1931. 

58. Duplex 
835 South Chester Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entries, front-gable entry porches 
with tapered brick posts on front and north elevations, front porch is screened, brick 
foundation, asbestos siding, exposed rafter ends. Occupied by Thad B. Hinnant of 
Hinnant Radion Company, and his wife Kathleen in 1928. Occupied by T. B. Poole, a life 
insurance salesman, and his wife Lula, and Fred Jones, a salesman at Gardner Music, and 
his wife Nora, in 1931. 

59. Isaac and Ethel Berger House 
837 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch 
with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, brick kneewall across 
fac;:ade, end and interior chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding, eave brackets, gable 
vents. Isaac Berger owned Bergers. 

60. Hugh K. and Dorothy J. Beveridge House 
839 South Chester Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
metal posts, interior chimney brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. Hugh K. 
Beveridge was a driver for H. Beveridge & Company. 

61. H. G. and Decaiet Beveridge House 
841 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 311 sash, single-leaf entry, front gable dormer, 
enclosed shed-roof front porch, end and interior chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding 
with wood shingles in gable ends, gable vents. H. G. Beveridge was a general manager. 

62. Hoyt and Elva Smith House 
843 South Chester Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, stuccoed, clipped-front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf 
entry, shed-roof dormer vent, clipped-front-gable partial-width porch with tapered, 
stuccoed posts on brick piers spanned by metal railing, end chimney, brick foundation, 
exposed rafter ends. Hoyt Smith was a traveling salesman. 

62a. Apartment 
843 South Chester Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, brick foundation, weatherboards. 

63. 1. K. and Sallie Anderson House 
845 South Chester Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, clipped-front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, clipped­
front-gable partial-width porch with metal posts spanned by replacement metal railing 
with metal posts, interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gable 
vents. J. K. Anderson was the service manager at W. H. Wray. 

64. Charles and Bessie Thomas House 
847 South Chester Street, ca. 1896, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungaloW, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormer, engaged front porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by brick 
kneewall, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. Charles Thomas 
was the plant manager for Pure Oil. 

SOUTH CLAY STREET 

East Side 

65. House 
508 South Clay Street, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 



One-story, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable bay, 212 horizontal sash, single-leaf 
entry, interior chimney, vinyl siding in gables, gable vents. 

66. James T. and Barbara G. Rankin House 
524 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 10/10 sash, single-leaf entry with shed-roof 
hood, brick stoop and metal railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding. 
James T. Rankin was vice-president ofL. S. Rankin & Sons. 

66a. Carport/Shed 
524 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story carport with corrugated metal roof, metal posts and frame shed room at east 
end. 

67. House 
526 South Clay Street, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable entry bay, 6/6 sash, single­
leaf entry, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, one-story wing on north 
elevation. This house replaced the circa 1931 T. M. and Ethel H. Fayssoux House. 

67a. Shed 
526 South Clay Street, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story metal shed with low front-gable roof and double-leaf entry. 

West Side 

68. W. Alonzo and Myrtle Smith House 
305 South Clay Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof entry porch with 
square posts and Tuscan columns, brick piers infilled with brick and concrete block to 
form a continuous foundation, vinyl siding, rear deck. W. Alonzo Smith was a employee 
of Loray Mills. 

69. Daniel J. and Eva Dennis House 
307 South Clay Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, replacement 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormers, shed-roof front porch with square posts, interior chimney, brick piers infilled 
with concrete block to form a continuous foundation, vinyl siding, rear addition. City 
Directories list no occupation for the Dennises. 



Vacant Lot 

70. Charles A. and Jane L. Froneberger House 
403 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6,8/8 and picture windows, single-leaf entry, shed-roof partial-width front porch with 
metal posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents. Charles A. 
Froneberger was secretary-treasurer of Rankin Armstrong. 

70a. Garage 
403 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single garage bay, brick foundation, asbestos siding. 

71. Devant J. and June S. Purvis House 
405 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof entry porch with metal post and railing, interior and 
fayade chimneys, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents. Devant J. Purvis was a 
student. 

72. Harold C. and Gurlene T. Strickland House 
407 South Clay Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
2/2 horizontal and picture windows, single-leaf entry, entry porch with metal awning, 
posts and railing, end chimney, vinyl siding in gables and on rear room, gable vents, 
attached carport on south elevation. Harold C. Strickland was an accountant at the Gaston 
County Department of Education. 

73. Ervin M. and Agnes B. Putnam House 
409 South Clay Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
2/2 horizontal and picture windows, single-leaf entry, side porch with turned posts and 
wood railing, end chimney, wood siding in gables, gable vents. Erwin M. Putnam was a 
machinist at Ferguson Gear. 

73a. Shed 
409 South Clay Street, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 



74. Annie S. Bolynn House 
501 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 and picture windows, single-leaf entry, shed-roof partial-width front porch with 
paired square posts, end and interior chimneys, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable 
vents, concrete block retaining walL Annie S. Bolynn was the widow of Lewis D. 
Bolynn. 

75. Charles K. and Jean D. Boren House 
503 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable entry 
bay, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, engaged partial-width front porch with square post on 
south end offacade, interior chinmey, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents. 
Charles K. Boren was a salesman at Piedmont Motors; Jean D. Boren was an office 
secretary at Mason & Mason Notary. 

76. Robert R. and Willadene Trevarthan House 
505 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof full-width front 
porch with metal posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents, 
rear addition. Robert R. Trevarthan was a salesman at Jacobs Furniture. 

76a. Shed 
505 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, single-leaf entry with front-gable hood, wood panel 
siding. 

77. Edward C. Smith House 
507 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof entry porch with metal posts, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents. City Directories list no occupation for Edward 
C. Smith. 

77a. Garage 
507 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable metal roof, double-leaf entry, flat-roof carport with square 
posts, weatherboards. 

78. . Saad S. and Athalene W. Simon House 



509 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
4/4, 6/6 and picture windows, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with metal posts, 
interior chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents. Saad S. Simon was a 
salesman. 

78a. Shed 
509 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, masonite siding, flat-roof addition 
on south side. 

79. Max H. and Frances S. Hoyle House 
511 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
2/2 horizontal and picture windows, single-leaf entry, flat-roof entry porch with metal 
posts, wheelchair ramp, interior chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gable 
vents. This house was vacant in 1942 and occupied by the Hoyles in 1945. Max H. 
Hoyle was a salesman at Belk's. 

79a. Garage 
511 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, German siding. 

80. Pau1 E. and Ylia P. Walsh House 
519 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable entry 
bay, 111 replacement sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof entry porch with metal posts, facade 
chimney, brick foundation, vinyl German siding, side and rear additions. Pau1 E. Walsh 
was a salesman at Du1aney Frozen Foods. 

80a. Carport 
519 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, south and west sides enclosed with aluminum siding, 
north and east sides open with metal posts, exposed rafter ends. 

81. Bernard G. and Blanche S. Banner House 
521 South Clay Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 



One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
111 replacement sash, single-leaf entry, facade chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, 
gable vents, rear patio. Bernard G. Banner worked for the J. H. Cutter Company. 

82. Clyde G. and Ruby N. Queen House 
523 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with paired Tuscan columns, interior 
chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents. Clyde G. Queen was the parts 
manager at Loughridge Motor Company. 

82a. Garage 
523 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, wide German siding. 

83. F. Pat and Katherine McSwain House 
525 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, brick stoop with metal railing, screened porch on south 
elevation, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. F. Pat McSwain 
was the manager of the WGNC Radio Station. 

83a. Garage 
525 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, roll-up garage door, wide German siding. 

84. George R. and Rachel E. Spencer House 
527 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
square posts and wood railing, interior chinmey, brick foundation, asbestos siding, side 
wing with 111 sash. George R. Spencer owned Spencer Machinery and Supply Company. 

84a. Garage 
527 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf garage door, wide German siding. 

85. Vivian Rankin House 
529 South Clay Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
metal posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, side wing. Vivian Rankin 
was a saleswoman. 

EDGEWOOD CIRCLE 

East Side 

86. Quay D. and Lillie B. Williford House 
902 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, frame, side-gable roof, four bays wide with northernmost bay under a 
slightly lower roof ridge, 8/8 sash, recessed entry with opening flanked by reeded 
pilasters and topped by gablet, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, German siding. 
Quay Williford was a cotton broker. 

Vacant Lot 

87. House 
904 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof with rear gabled wing, three bays wide, double pile, 
8/8 sash at fIrst floor, replacement windows at second floor, gabled portico on slender 
Tuscan columns with arched ceiling, partially enclosed hip-roof side porch, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. 

87a. Outbuilding 
904 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1960, Noncontributing building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, built into slope so that shed-roof front porch extends 
from second-story facade on west side, board-and-batten and weatherboard exterior. 

Vacant Lot 

88. J. Clay and Cary P. Williamson House 
1002 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Neoclassical, frame, side-gable roof, fIve bays wide, double pile, 6/6 sash, 
full-height porch across facade supported by squared columns, pilasters flank centered 
front door topped by transom, brick foundation, wood shingle siding. J. Clay Williamson 
was an agent for Anderson Clayton & Co. 

Vacant Lot 

89. David W. and Bessie B. Smith House 
1006 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 



Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, three bays wide, three bays deep, 
gabled portico with curved ceiling over central entry flanked by sidelights, replacement 
windows and door. David Smith was the general manager of Smith Chevrolet. 

90. William H. Kelley House 
1008 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1938, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, two-story front porch 
supported by squared columns, one-story wing at north side, two-story wing at south side 
with exterior brick chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. Extensive renovations 
have been made, including new foundation work, new chimney and replacement of the 
original single-story porch with a two-story version. William Kelley was the secretary­
treasurer of Grocers Baking Company. 

West Side 

91. Apartment Building 
901 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1957, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 4-unit, double-pile, metal casement windows, gabled 
porticos with metal posts at front entries, bracketed shed-roof hoods at rear entries, vinyl 
in portico gables. 

92. Henry Groves House 
905 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, five bays wide, replacement windows, flat-roof 
semicircular portico on slender Tuscan columns, single-story side porch at south 
elevation with added second-story room above, corbelled brick end chimneys, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. Henry Groves was president of Groves Mills. 

92a. Garage Apartment 
905 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

Two-story, front-gable roof, frame, garage door on facade with stairs to second-story 
entry on north elevation, replacement windows, vinyl siding. 

93. Charles A. and Jessie L. Moss House 
907 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, hip roof, paired 6/1 sash, flat-roof portico on slender Tuscan columns 
with roof balustrade, interior brick chimney at north roof slope, eave brackets. Charles 
Moss was a florist with a shop at 1024 E. Franklin Street. 

93a. Garage 



907 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, hip roof, brick and weatherboards, sliding plank doors. 

94. Edwin F. and Lottie F. Rockett House 
1003 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 replacement sash, round-arch 
bracketed hood at asymmetrically placed front entry, large integrated hip-roof dormer at 
northeast comer of house, projecting flat-roof sunroom addition at north end of facade, 
exterior chimney at south elevation pierces overhanging eave. Edwin Rockett was a clerk 
at the post office. 

94a. Outbuilding/Carport 
1003 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, front-gable roof, glazed paneled door at facade flanked by 6-light fixed-sash 
windows, shed-roof carport on south elevation. 

95. Fred E. and Susan Hashhagen, Jr. House 
1005 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, front-gable roof, asymmetrically massed with substantial 
intersecting gable wing at northwest comer, 6/6 sash and casement windows, shed 
dormer on north slope of main section, large gabled portico with barrel-arch ceiling 
supported by square posts, large flat-roof addition at rear, exterior chimney at south 
elevation, brick foundation, weatherboards. Fred Hashhagen was a merchandise broker. 

95a. Garage 
1005 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf plank door, weatherboards. 

96. Harry G. and Eleanor Grier House 
1007 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, recessed 
entry with reeded pilasters, exterior brick chimney at south elevation. Harry Grier worked 
as an agent for Metropolitan Life Insurance Company. 

97. Alvin Le Roy and Dean Sudduth House 
1009 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, hip roof, vinyl windows, enclosed engaged front porch, hip­
roof wing at north elevation, interior and end chimneys, weatherboards, exposed rafter 
ends, 6/1 sash windows, French doors. 



98. Nancy R. Morris House 
1015 Edgewood Circle, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting pedimented wing, pedimented portico 
with square posts and wood railing, 8/8 sash, interior and end chinmeys, brick 
foundation, weatherboards. Nancy Morris was a city hostess. 

FOREST HILLS LANE 

East Side 

99. House 
208 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1969, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Neoclassical Revival, brick, hip roof with projecting front-gable wings, 9/9 
sash, projecting pedimented portico on paired Tuscan columns shelters centered entrance, 
quoins at either end offavade, garage wing at northeast comer of house. Forest Hills 
Lane does not appear in the City Directories. 

100. House 
210 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front­
gable wing at north end of facade, 8/8 sash, recessed gabled dormers in front roof slope, 
side-gabled single-story wing at south elevation, facade chinmeyat front-gabled wing, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. Forest Hills Lane does not appear in the City Directories. 

101. House 
212 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, five bays wide, 6/6 sash, long side­
gabled single-story wing at north elevation, single-story addition across rear elevation, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. Forest Hills Lane does not appear in the City Directories. 

lOla. Shed 
212 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, single-leaf entry, front-gable roof, aluminum siding. 

102. House 
220 Forest Hills Lane, ca 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing at south end of facade, 6/6 
and 8/8 sash, bay window with copper bellcast roof at projecting wing, gabled wall 
dormers, corbelled chimneys, brick and vinyl exterior. Forest Hills Lane does not appear 
in the City Directories. 



102a. Garage 
220 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame side-gable roof, gabled dormers connected by added flat-roofed section, 
folding wood doors, vinyl siding. 

West Side 

103. House 
203 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Tudor Revival, brick, side-gable roof with two intersecting 
front-gable wings, smaller front-gable bay projects only slightly and holds round-arch 
door, larger front-gable wing features flared eave on north end, leaded metal casement 
windows. Forest Hills Lane does not appear in the City Directories. 

103a. Garage Apartment 
203 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, front-gable roof, built into slope in rear yard, entry from 
Tenth Street, small apartment in half-story accessible from door in east gable wall 
reached from concrete stoop. 

104. House 
207 Forest Hills Lane, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with paired projecting clipped-gable wings at either end 
offacade, patio stretches between projecting wings, 6/6 sash, stuccoed with half­
timbering. Forest Hills Lane does not appear in the City Directories. 

WEST GARRISON BOULEVARD 

North Side 

Vacant Lot 

Vacant Lot 

105. House 
228 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable porch with square 
posts, hip-roof bay on west elevation, hip-roofed screened porch on east elevation, brick 
foundation, German siding. City directory research could not be completed for most of 
West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) because the 
address numbers have changed. 



Vacant Lot 

106. House 
348 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing at west 
end of facade, 8/8 sash, gabled dormer with vinyl siding in front roof slope, large shed 
dormer with vinyl siding on rear roof slope, enclosed side porch on east elevation with 
vertical wood siding and German siding in gable. City directory research for most of 
West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) was difficult 
because the address numbers have changed. This house may have been previously 
numbered 310, the only house on the north side of the 300 block in the 1942 directory. 
Lewis Kalmeyer, a general merchandise store owner, and his wife Katie M. were listed as 
owners. In 1959, 310 West Seventh Avenue was owned by the Salvation Army. 

107. Gastonia High School Vocational Building 
362 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1955, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, Modernist, brick, flat roof, metal-frame windows, cast stone window 
surrounds angle in from top to bottom and frame three bays on the west elevation and 
three bays on the south elevation, fluted cast stone panels are located between banks of 
windows in the bays with cast stone surrounds. A pedestrian bridge across Garrison 
Boulevard connects the building to Gastonia High School to the south. 

Parking Lot 

Vacant Lot 

Vacant Lot 

108. House 
514 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1938, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, replacement windows, enclosed front­
gable porch and gabled portico, exterior brick chimney, brick foundation, aluminum 
siding. City directory research could not be completed for most of West Garrison 
Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) because the address numbers 
have changed. 

108a. Garage 
514 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete-block, front-gable roof, roll-up garage door, aluminum siding in 
gables. 



109. House 
520 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with gabled rear wing, 6/6 sash, gabled portico with 
metal posts, brick chimney on east end, brick foundation, asbestos siding. City directory 
research could not be completed for most of West Garrison Boulevard (historically 
known as West Seventh Avenue) because the address numbers have changed. 

110. House 
524 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay that houses recessed 
comer entry, 6/6 sash, side-gable porch on east elevation, end chimneys, brick 
foundation, Gennan siding. City directory research could not be completed for most of 
West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) because the 
address numbers have changed. 

111. House 
602 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gabled bay that houses recessed 
porch, 6/6 sash, interior chimney. City directory research could not be completed for 
most of West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) because 
the address numbers have changed. 

112. House 
606 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at east end of facade, 
6/6 sash, paneled door, recessed front porch with square posts and gablet over entrance, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. City directory research could not be completed for most of 
West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) because the 
address numbers have changed. 

113. House 
616 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 6/6 and 6/1 sash, hip-roof 
front porch with square posts on brick piers, porch enclosed on west end, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. City directory research could not be completed for most of West 
Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) because the address 
numbers have changed. 

113a. Garage 
616 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, front-gable roof, paneled and glazed double-leaf door, vinyl siding. 

South Side 

Vacant Lot 

Parking Lot 

114. Gastonia High School Gymnasium 
245 Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1965, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, brick, flat roof, plate glass windows, glass entrance set beneath canopy with 
stepped soffit; converted for retail use. 

Parking Lot 

liS. House 
SOl West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, c1ipped-side-gable roof with gabled rear wing, 6/6 sash, 
French door with sidelights sheltered by flat-roof portico with square posts, flat-roof 
porch with entry at east elevation. City directory research could not be completed for 
most of West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh Avenue) because 
the address numbers have changed. 

liSa. Garage 
SOl West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, front-gable roof, double-leaf plank door. 

116. House 
507 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, paneled door flanked by 
sidelights, gabled hood supported by curved brackets, facade chimney. City directory 
research could not be completed for most of West Garrison Boulevard (historically 
known as West Seventh Avenue) because the address numbers have changed. 

116a. Garage 
507 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, German siding. 

117. House 
511 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 



One-story, Period Cottage, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing at east 
end of facade, slightly projecting gabled entry bay with round-arch door, replacement 
windows, brick foundation, vinyl siding. City directory research could not be completed 
for most of West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as W. Seventh Avenue) 
because the address numbers have changed. 

117a. Garage 
511 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, replacement doors, German siding. 

118. House 
515 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable porch, brick 
foundation, German siding, bracketed eaves, exposed rafter ends. City directory research 
could not be completed for most of West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West 
Seventh Avenue) because the address numbers have changed. 

119. House 
527 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal sash, picture window with 2/2 
horizontal sidelights, vertical wood siding. City directory research could not be 
completed for most of West Garrison Boulevard (historically known as West Seventh 
Avenue) because the address numbers have changed. 

120. House 
601 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1963, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, rear attached carport with enclosed shed. 

121. House 
605 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1915, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 111 and 2/2 sash, front-gable porch with battered piers 
on brick posts and concrete floor, shed-roof dormer in front roof slope, two interior brick 
chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding. The house was originally numbered 503. W. M. 
Doyle, a district manager at Gate City Life Insurance Company, and his wife Effie rented 
the house in 1920-31. 

122. Robert A. and Kate B. Jackson House 
609 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable porch with square posts on brick 
piers spanned by wood railing, gabled rear wing with screened porch, brick foundation, 



asbestos siding. The house was originally numbered 609. Robert Jackson was a meter 
tester with the City Light, Water & Sewerage department. 

122a. Garage 
609 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf swinging plank door, German siding. 

123. House 
613 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, front patio sheltered by metal 
awning on metal posts, brick facade chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding. 
William J. Ashley, a station attendant at Tar Hill Service Company, and his wife Joyce B. 
rented the house in 1941-42. 

123a. Garage 
613 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, shed roof, open garage bay at left, enclosed room at right, German 
siding. 

124. House 
617 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, side-gabled, projecting gabled porch supported by metal posts, 6/6 sash, 
German siding, plywood siding at hip-roof bay on east elevation. Fred A. Yoder, a 
teacher, and his wife Blanche rented the house in 1941-42. 

125. Mrs. Vercie B. Willis House I 
621 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at center offacade, 6/6 
sash, picture window with sidelights, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, aluminum 
siding. The city directory did not list an occupation for Vercie Willis. 

126. Mrs. Vercie B. Willis House II 
701 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gabled bay at center of facade, 6/6 
sash, recessed porch at northeast comer of house, three interior brick chimneys, 
aluminum siding. The city directory did not list an occupation for Vercie Willis. 

126a. Garage 
701 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1970, Noncontributing Building 



One-story, frame, front-gable roof, aluminum siding. 

127. John E. and Joyce C. Brison House 
711 West Garrison Boulevard, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, slightly projecting front-gable bay with recessed entry 
porch at east end, smaller gabled wing at east elevation, 6/6 sash, brick foundation, 
aluminum siding. John E. Brison Jr. was an assistant buyer at Belk's. 

GIBBONS STREET 

East Side 

128. House 
810 Gibbons Street, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, hip-roof, 4/4 sash, recessed front porch that is enclosed at 
south end and features picture window with sidelights and metal porch posts, brick 
foundation, asbestos siding. Gibbons Street was not listed in the city directory until 1936. 
Dennis J. and Mamie Baucom lived in the house then; Dennis worked as a confectioner. 

129. Walter N. and Edna K. Page Duplex 
812-814 Gibbons Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, gabled porticos on metal posts, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. Walter Page, an agent with the P&N Railway, lived with his 
wife in 812. In 1951, their tenants in 814 were Paul and Elsie Combs, who both worked 
for Good Will Press & Good Will Sales. 

130. House 
816 Gibbons Street, ca. 1920, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, enclosed front-gable porch at north end of facade, 2/2 
horizontal sash, concrete-block foundation, plywood siding. This address does not appear 
in the city directories. 

13l. House 
818 Gibbons Street, ca 1920, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable porch at north end of facade, 
slender squared columns in groups of three support each free comer of porch gable, shed­
roof porch on rear elevation, brick foundation, German siding, exposed rafter ends, 
bracketed eaves. This address does not appear in City Directories. 

132. James C. and Willie Ensley House 
908 Gibbons Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable entry porch with square posts, 
concrete block foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. James C. Ensley was a machinist at 
Alexander Machine. 

132a. Shed 
908 Gibbons Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, vertical board siding. 

133. Aaron L. and Frances E. Royston House 
910 Gibbons Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 111 and 6/6 sash, front-gable entry porch with square 
posts, concrete block foundation, German siding, gable vents, enclosed rear porch. Aaron 
L. Royston was a driver for Akers Motor Lines. 

134. Care and Bertha Garrison Hose 
912 Gibbons Street, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 1/1 sash, single-leaf entry sheltered by flat-roof hood with 
metal posts, interior stuccoed chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, addition on north 
elevation. Care Garrison was a textile worker at Ruby Cotton Mills. 

134a. Garage 
912 Gibbons Street, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete block, side-gable roof, two roll-up garage doors, single-leaf entry. 

135. Walter L. and Pauline S. Kirby House 
914 Gibbons Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with gabled rear wing, 6/6 sash, front-gable entry porch 
with slender Tuscan columns, end chimney, brick foundation, German siding. Walter L. 
Kirby was a salesman at Kirby Music Company. 

136. E. Hunter and Olive T. Morris House 
916 Gibbons Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable entry porch with metal posts, 
interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. E. Hunter Morris owned Morris Barber 
Shop. 

136a. Carport 
916 Gibbons Street, ca. 1970, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, low front-gable roof, enclosed shed room with vinyl siding at south end. 



136b. Shed 
916 Gibbons Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, shed roof, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 

West Side 

Vacant Lot 

Vacant Lot 

Vacant Lot 

Vacant Lot 

Vacant Lot 

137. Ralph and Evelyn Dalton House 
827 Gibbons Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing at south end of facade, 
6/6 sash, replacement front door, shed-roof porch across north two-thirds of facade, shed­
roof addition across rear elevation, brick foundation, German siding at facade under 
porch roof, plywood elsewhere. Ralph Dalton was an advertising man at the Webb 
Theatre. 

138. House 
907 Gibbons Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front gable, 6/6 sash, shed-roof porch 
with iron posts across two bays of north end of facade, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 
Charles and Rachel Thornburg rented the house in 1942; Charles worked at the Sunrise 
Dairy. 

139. House 
909 Gibbons Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 6/6 sash, 2-light paneled door, corner porch with 
slender square posts inset across two bays at north end of facade, interior brick chimney, 
brick foundation, German siding. Ellene Walters, the widow of Bryan Walters, rented the 
house in 1942. 

140. House 
911 Gibbons Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roofwith projecting front-gable wing at south end of facade, 
6/6 sash, replacement door, shed-roof porch across remaining two bays offacade, interior 
brick chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 

141. House 
913 Gibbons Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story-on-basement, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1 sash, 
integrated shed-roof porch with battered porch posts across facade, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, eave brackets. In 1934, the fIrst year Gibbons Street appears in the city 
directory, Delia Robinson, the widow of David Robinson, rented the house. 

142. House 
915 Gibbons Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1 sash, replacement door, 
front-gable porch supported by battered posts on brick piers, interior brick chimney, 
weatherboards, eave brackets. In 1934, the fIrst year Gibbons Street appears in the city 
directory, Clyde o. Robinson, the sheriff, and his wife Julia lived in the house. 

HANNA STREET 

East Side 

143. M. J. and Thelma Rudisill House 
304 Hanna Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, 
enclosed front-gable porch, interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, wood siding, 
triangular eave brackets, gable vents, concrete block retaining wall. M. J. Rudisill was a 
manager at a florist. 

144. Eugene and Clara Gray House 
404 Hanna Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, front-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, recessed entry porch with arched opening, interior chimney, attached metal carport 
on north elevation. Eugene Gray was a driver. 

145. Carl and Margaret Currence House 
406 Hanna Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, 
two front-gable dormers, end chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding, side wing 
with picture window. Carl Currence was the assistant manager of Gastonia Merchants 
Oil. 



146. Anna E. Sloan House II 
408 Hanna Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/9 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, front-gable entry porch with paired Tuscan columns and metal railing, interior 
chimney, brick foundation, aluminurn siding. City Directories list no occupation for Anna 
Sloan. 

146a. Garage 
408 Hanna Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, roll-up garage door, weatherboards. 

147. Anna E. Sloan House I 
502 Hanna Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Tudor Revival influence, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable 
bay, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, recessed entry porch with arched 
opening, arcaded side porch, end chimney, gable vents, cornice returns. City Directories 
list no occupation for Anna Sloan. 

147a. Garage 
502 Hanna Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, open garage bay, wood siding, metal carport attached 
to south elevation. 

148. Augustus and Margaret Froneberger House 
504 Hanna Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Foursquare, brick, hip roof, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, 
hip-roof donner vent, hip-roof entry porch with square brick posts, screened hip-roof side 
porch, interior chimney, eave brackets. Augustus Froneberger was the secretary of the 
Rankin-Armstrong Company. 

148a. Garage 
504 Hanna Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, two garage bays, wood siding. 

149. Jefferson D. and Katherine Spicer House 
506 Hanna Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 



Two-story, brick, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof entry porch with tapered 
posts on brick piers, porte cochere with tapered posts on brick piers, end chimney, eave 
brackets. Jefferson D. Spicer worked for Metropolitan Life Insurance. 

149a. Garage 
506 Hanna Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, two garage bays, weatherboards. 

150. House 
508 Hanna Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal and picture windows, recessed 
single-leaf entry, interior chimney, attached carport on south elevation. 

151. House 
510 Hanna Street, ca. 1972, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 111 windows, recessed single-leaf entry, brick stoop with 
metal railing, brick foundation, asbestos siding, engaged screen-in porch on southwest 
comer, attached carport on east elevation. 

ISla. Shed 
510 Hanna Street, ca. 1972, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, weatherboards. 

West Side 

152. Doms C. and Ruby McSwain House 
309 Hanna Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, 
front-gable porch with square posts, interior chimneys, brick foundation, wood shingle 
siding, triangular eave brackets, exposed rafter ends. Doms C. McSwain was a printer at 
Loftin Printing Company. 

153. John N. and Maggie Hanna House 
311 Hanna Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and picture windows, 
single-leaf entry sheltered by flat-roof hood, two front-gable donners, end and interior 
chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding, attached flat-roof carport on north 
elevation. John N. Hanna owned Hanna & Sons Meats. 

153a. Shed 



311 Hanna Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, vinyl siding. 

154. George E. and Blanche Rice House 
405 Hanna Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 9/9 sash, single-leaf entry, screened hip-roof porch with 
square posts, brick foundation, aluminum siding. George E. Rice was the assistant 
manager of Woolworth's. 

155. John E. and Elizabeth Eck House 
407 Hanna Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, 
front-gable entry porch with Tuscan columns, screened side porch on south elevation, 
interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. John E. Eck was a CPA at Eck & 
Stephens. The Ecks purchased this lot in 1921 from Miriam Moore. 

155a. Garage 
407 Hanna Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, roll-up garage door, vinyl siding. 

156. Eugene and Stella Brittian House 
411 Hanna Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof entry 
porch with square posts and Chippendale railing, end chimney. Eugene Brittian was 
president of Gastonia Insurance and Realty. The Brittians purchased this lot in 1938. 

157. Thomas C. and Rosa Smith House 
501 Hanna Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, front-gable entry 
porch with Tuscan columns, flat-roof side porch with Tuscan columns on north elevation, 
projecting hexagonal bay on west elevation, brick foundation, interior chimneys, 
weatherboards. Thomas C. Smith was an agent for Metropolitan Life Insurance 
Company. 

158. Morris and Anne Levinson House 
503 Hanna Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, side-gable roof, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, partial­
width front-gable porch with truncated posts on brick piers, fayade chimney. Morris 
Levinson was president and manager of Morris Jewelry Company. 



158a. Garage 
503 Hanna Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, masonite siding. 

159. Mack and Faye McConnell House 
505 Hanna Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry 
porch with arched opening, end chinmey, vinyl-sided shed addition at rear. Mack 
McConnell was vice-president and manager of William's Piggly-Wiggly. 

159a. Garage 
505 Hanna Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, weatherboards. 

160. Lester and Elizabeth Kinlaw House 
507 Hanna Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable root; 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry 
porch with Tuscan colunms, one-story wing on south elevation, screened porch at rear, 
end chinmey, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Lester Kinlaw was assistant manager of 
Kinlaw's grocery. 

160a. Garage 
507 Hanna Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, weatherboards. 

161. Gerald and Esther Harmon House 
509 Hanna Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, front-gable entry porch with square posts, shed addition on south elevation, 
screened arcaded porch on north elevation, interior chinmey, brick foundation, German 
siding, exposed rafter ends, gable vents. Gerald Harmon was district manager of the Life 
Insurance Company of Virginia. 

161a. Apartment 
509A Hanna Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, brick foundation, German 
siding. 



162. Howard and Rebecca Coffey House 
511 Hanna Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof entry 
porch with grouped posts and metal roof balustrade, auxiliary entry porch on south 
elevation, end chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents. Howard Coffey 
was a salesman at Goodnight Brothers. 

HARVIE AVENUE 

North Side 

163. Duplex 
408-410 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entries, hip-roof dormer, front-gable 
entry porches with square posts spanned by wood railings, end chimneys, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. Clyde H. Wilks, a traveling salesman, and his wife Bertha 
occupied 408 in 1928. 

163a. Garage 
408-410 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, five open garage bays, storage room with single-leaf 
entry at north end. 

164. Robert C. and Virginia O. Miller House I 
412 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormer, full-width engaged front porch with truncated posts on brick piers, end chimney, 
brick foundation, wood shingle siding, exposed rafter ends, eave brackets. Robert C. 
Miller was a physician. 

164a. Garage 
412 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, sliding garage doors, wood shingle siding. 

165. Robert C. and Virginia O. Miller House II 
414 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, screened wrap-around porch with 
square brick posts, interior chimneys. Robert C. Miller was a physician. Robert G. and 
Edith M. Miller also lived at 414 in 1942. 



165a. Garage 
414 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, sliding garage doors, weatherboards with wood 
shingle siding in front-gable, brick foundation, shed room with single-leaf entry on north 
elevation. 

166. Samuel A. and Ila Lanier House 
528 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with central front gable, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with 
pilasters, brick stoop and metal railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, asbestos 
siding, gable vents. Samuel A. Lanier was the night supervisor at Clara & Dunn Mills. 
The Baber family bought the house in 1916 and it remains in the family. 

167. John L. and Ida Currence House 
530 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights 
and transom, large front-gable dormer, wrap-around front porch with tapered posts on 
brick piers spanned by wood railing, east half of porch is screened, interior chimney, 
brick foundation, weatherboards with wood shingles in gables, exposed rafter ends. John 
L. Currence was a farmer. 

167a. Barn 
530 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open central bay, shed addition on east elevation. 

168. William J. and Lillian L. Harper House 
534 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, double front-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, hip­
roof wrap-around front porch with square posts, interior chimneys, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. William J. Harper was a farmer. 

168a. Workshop/Garage 
534 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, garage bays on east side, single-leaf entries 
on west side, weatherboards. One-story, shed-roof, open bay carport addition attached to 
side elevation. 

169. House 
536 Harvie Avenue, 1960, Noncontributing Building 



One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 2/2 horizontal 
sash, single-leaf entry, vinyl siding in gable ends, curved brick lattice wall at front of 
house. This house was under construction in 1960. 

169a. Shed 
536 Harvie Avenue, 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, brick veneer, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, exposed rafter ends. 

170. W. Frank and Minnie L. Lowe House 
538 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormers, front­
gable entry porch with metal posts and metal railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding. W. Frank Lowe was a plant supervisor at SBT & T. 

170a. Shed 
538 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, almost flat roof, 111 metal sash, single-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

South Side 

171. Duplex 
405-407 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1965, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entries, front-gable entry porches 
with square posts, vinyl siding in gables, stone retaining wall. 

172. Moe and Mollie Schultz House 
409 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormer, full-width front porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by wood 
railing, interior chimneys, brick foundation, German siding, exposed rafter ends, eave 
brackets, porte cochere on west elevation. Moe Schultz worked at the Blue Front Store. 

173. Merrick C. and Janie Thorn House 
411 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, engaged full­
width front porch with truncated posts on brick piers, interior chimneys, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, exposed rafter ends, porte cochere on east elevation. Merrick C. Thorn 
was a car inspector for the Southern Railway. 

174. Janie Hill House 



413 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer, shed-roof front 
porch with square posts spanned by wood railing, interior chimneys, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, exposed rafter ends. Janie Hill was a cook. 

175. Robert L. and Ethel Wilson House 
517 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer, 
wrap-around front porch with Tuscan columns, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. Robert L. Wilson was an overseer at T. L. Craig. 

175a. Garage 
517 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, weatherboards, exposed rafter ends. 

175b. Shed 
517 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, gambrel roof, double-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

176. John L. and Margaret Currence House 
521 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Foursquare, frame, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, hip­
roof wrap-around porch with paired square posts on brick piers spanned by brick 
kneewall, end chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, exposed rafter ends. John L. 
Currence sold real estate. 

177. Blanton Stacey House 
523 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 1/1 and 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer, 
shed-roof full-width front porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned by wood 
railing, interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards and German siding, 
exposed rafter ends. City Directories list no occupation for Blanton Stacey. 

177a. Carport 
523 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Structure 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof supported by square wood posts. 

177b. Shed 
523 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, wood siding. 

178. Mary Jones House 
525 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 111 sash, recessed single-leaf entry, interior chimney, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. Mary Jones was an employee of Loray Mills. 

178a. Shed 
525 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, pyramidal roof, 2/2 horizontal sash, single-leaf entry, brick kneewall, 
wood shingle siding. 

179. W. B. and Ina Rustin House 
531 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable full-width front 
porch with square posts on brick piers spanned by brick kneewall, end and interior 
chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. W. B. Rustin was a furniture 
salesman. 

180. E. J. Jones House 
533 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer, 
engaged screened full-width front porch with square posts on brick piers spanned by 
brick kneewall, interior chimney, brick foundation, German and aluminum siding, 
exposed rafter ends, eave brackets. City Directories list no occupation for E. J. Jones. 

181. William C. and Mamie L. Ferguson House 
535 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof dormer, engaged partial­
width front porch with square posts on brick piers spanned by brick kneewall, end 
chimney, brick foundation, German siding, exposed rafter ends. William C. Ferguson was 
a molder at Cocker Machine and Foundry. 

181a. Shed 
535 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, plywood sheathing. 

182. J. Walker and Sara Baird House 
537 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, hip roof with projecting front-gable bay, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, 
engaged entry porch with square post, interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. 
J. Walker Baird was carpenter. 

182a. Shed 
537 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, fixed sash, double-leaf entry, brick foundation, 
aluminum siding. 

183. John C. and Nora Baber House 
539 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 4/4 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, full-width two­
story porch with square posts, second-story door with small balcony and wood 
balustrade, end and interior chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards, one-story rear 
wing. John C. Baber was a machinist at Cocker Machine and Foundry. 

183a. Shed 
539 Harvie Avenue, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, brick foundation, aluminum siding. 

HILLSIDE DRIVE 

East Side 

184. Earle E. and Lucia Groves House 
1002 Hillside Drive, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Period Cottage, frame, intersecting gable roof, wood casement 
windows, bracketed shed-roof front porch, large shed dormer in front roof slope, stone 
facade chimney, vinyl siding. Earle Groves was president of Gastonia Bonded 
Warehouse and treasurer of Groves Thread. 

184a. Garage 
1002 Hillside Drive, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, front-gable roof, casement window in front gable wall, 
vinyl siding. 

185. S. Emmett and Catherine Morrison House 
1006 Hillside Drive, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 



One-and-one-half-story, Dutch Colonial Revival, brick, intersecting gambrel roof, 6/6 
sash, single-leaf entry with fanlight, gabled front portico with arched ceiling and paired 
Tuscan columns, large shed-dormer in front roof slope, arcaded wing at north end of 
facade, brick facade chimney. Emmett Morrison was an owner of the Morrison & Winter 
Company. 

West Side 

186. Wade H. and Margaret F. Williford III House 
907 Hillside Drive, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/12 sash, flat-roof portico 
with slender paired Doric columns and roof balustrade, enclosed hip-roof porch on north 
elevation, rear gabled wing, exterior brick chimney on south elevation, cornice returns. 
Wade Williford III worked at the family business, Quay D. Williford Cotton. 

187. Frederick L. and Esther M. Page House 
1005 Hillside Drive, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Period Cottage, frame, high hip roof, intersecting front-gable with flared eave 
at north end offacade, slightly projecting front-gable entrance bay, paired 6/6 sash, flat­
roof portico with Doric columns, shed dormer on north slope of front-gable bay, interior 
brick chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Frederick Page was the manager of 
Page, Stanley & Page, cotton brokers. 

188. James T. and Eleanor K. Comer House 
1007 Hillside Drive, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Period Cottage, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable entry 
bay, 6/6 sash, large shed dormers on front and rear roof slopes, brick facade chimney 
north of entry bay, brick foundation, aluminum siding. James Comer was the district 
manager at Jefferson Standard Life Insurance Company in the Commercial Building at 
195 W. Main Avenue. 

JACKSON STREET 

East Side 

189. Philip T. and Florence Withers House 
606 Jackson Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, 
two front-gable dormers, front-gable entry porch with paired square posts and modillion 
cornice, end chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Philip T. Withers was a 
building contractor. 



190. Quay D. and Lillie Williford House 
608 Jackson Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
porch with metal posts, end chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards with wood 
shingles in gables, eave brackets. Quay D. Williford was the manager of Williford Cotton 
Company. 

190a. Shed 
608 Jackson Street, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, double-leaf entry, board-and-batten siding. 

191. Claude A. and Nancy K. White House 
610 Jackson Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
2/2 horizontal sash, shed-roof hood over single-leaf entry, corner carport with square 
posts on brick piers, interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. Claude A. White 
was the manager of Evans College of Commerce. 

Vacant Lot 

192. House 
806 Jackson Street, ca.1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl windows, single-leaf entry, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding. 

193. Paul and Viola Kincaid House 
808 Jackson Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 411 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable porch with 
square posts, brick foundation, weatherboards. Paul Kincaid was a salesman with E. W. 
Montgomery Company. 

194. Albert and Cornelia A. Austin House 
810 Jackson Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, inset porch with decorative 
iron posts and balustrade, brick foundation, German siding. Albert Austin was an 
overseer at Gastonia Combed Yam Corporation. 

195. J. W. and Jessie Smith House 
812 Jackson Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 



One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, vinyl replacement windows, single-leaf 
entry, inset porch, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. J. W. Smith was a 
heating engineer. 

196. Clifford L. and Blanche F. Shiflet House 
814 Jackson Street, ca. 1932, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 4/4 sash, single-leaf entry, gabled porch with square posts on 
brick piers, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Clifford L. Shiflet was a salesman with Moore 
and Stewart. 

197. William D. and Dorothy Killian House 
816 Jackson Street, ca. 1938, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof with front-gable wing, vinyl replacement 
windows, single-leaf entry, enclosed hip-roof porch, brick chimney on north elevation, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. William D. Killian was a salesman with W. L. C. Killian 
and Son. 

197a. Garage 
816 Jackson Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, front-gable, frame, weatherboards, wooden doors. 

198. Banks and Helen B. Camel House 
820 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, front-gable wing with bay window, vinyl replacement 
windows, single-leaf entry, brick foundation, vinyl siding, long side-gable addition on 
north elevation. Banks Camel was a bookkeeper. 

199. Walter and Margaret S. Sherrill House 
822 Jackson Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete block with German siding in gable ends, front-gable roof, vinyl 
replacement windows, single-leaf entry sheltered by hood, house is oriented to the north 
with the side elevation facing Jackson Street, ell extends to the east. Walter Sherrill 
owned Shelby's Studio, a photography studio. R. F. Shelby, who built a house at 608 Lee 
Street in the mid-l 920s, owned Shelby's Studio at that time. Margaret may be R. F. 
Shelby's daughter. 

200. Robert H. and Ruth Childers House 
824 Jackson Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 



One-story, Ranch, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 sash, interior brick 
chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding. Robert Childers was a projectionist at the 
Lyric Theater. Ruth Childers was a clerk at Warren Gardner's Young Men's Shop. 

201. Larry and Frances Rose House 
828 Jackson Street, ca. 1958, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick and vinyl siding with German siding in the side gable ends, side­
gable roof with front-gable porch, 212 horizontal sash, single-leaf entry, addition extends 
from north elevation. Larry Rose was a teacher at Peedin School. Frances Rose was a 
bookkeeper with Citizens National Bank. 

201a. Garage 
828 Jackson Street, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, front-gable roof, frame, vertical siding. 

202. Benjamin and Ruth Gray House 
832 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl replacement windows, single-leaf entry, gabled 
addition and screen porch on north elevation, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding. Benjamin Gray repaired watches at Marm's Jewelry Store. 

203. Glenn and Barbara H. Owen House 
834 Jackson Street, ca. 1938, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash and bay window, single-leaf entry, inset porch 
with new posts and balustrade, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Glenn Owen was a printer. 

204. Walter S. and Mary Fuller House 
836 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, replacement windows, single-leaf entry, gabled portico 
with arched ceiling and replacement posts, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
German siding. Walter S. Fuller was a clerk at Kennedy's Inc. Mary Fuller was a 
machine operator with Sun Spun Chenilles. 

205. Marcus S. and Eleanor B. McCluney House 
838 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, hip roof with front-and side-gable wings, III 
windows, single-leaf entries, fac;ade chimney, German-sided rear addition. Marcus S. 
McCluney was a printer with Gazette Publishing Company. Lillian I. McCluney, widow 
of Thomas C., also lived at this address. 



205a. Garage 
838 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, open garage bay, German siding. 

206. Rental House 
840 Jackson Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, 2/2 horizontal and picture windows, single-leaf entry, brick 
stoop with concrete floor and metal railing, gable vents. Everett and Elizabeth Stewart 
lived here in 1957; Mr. Stewart was a manager at a Goodyear Service Store. 

206a. Carport 
840 Jackson Street, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Structure 

One-story, metal carport with front-gable roof. 

206b. Shed 
840 Jackson Street, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

207. Rental House 
842 Jackson Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, 212 horizontal and picture windows, single-leaf entry, gable 
vents. John K. and Margaret B. Thompson lived here in 1957. They owned Cox's 
Sundries. 

208. Odell A. Mace House 
844 Jackson Street, ca. 1957, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick with vinyl siding in the gable ends, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal and 
picture windows, single-leaf entry. City Directories do not list an occupation for Odell 
Mace. 

West Side 

209. Wilton and Carson Cathey House 
709 Jackson Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, patterned brick, side-gable roof, 611 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry 
porch with metal posts, end chimney, vinyl siding in gables, gable vents. Wilton Cathey 
was a bookkeeper at A. B. Carter. 

209a. Shed 



709 Jackson Street, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, wood panel siding. 

210. Paul J. and Lorrie H. Little House 
711 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1 and 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry 
porch with square posts spanned by wood railing, end chimneys, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, addition on north elevation. Paul J. Little was a shipping clerk at Jacobs 
Furniture Company. 

211. Maude Barnette House 
811 Jackson Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, side-gable roof, full-width porch with square posts and railing, 6/6 and 8/8 
sash, single-leaf entry, interior chimney, brick foundation, German siding. Maude 
Barnette was the widow of John A. and a clerk at Colonial Ice Company. 

212. Charles E. and Wilma Smith House 
813 Jackson Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable bay, projecting 
front-gable entry vestibule, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding, gable vents. Charles E. Smith was a salesman with the Coca Cola Bottling 
Company. 

213. William and Eloise Wilson House 
815 Jackson Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable entry 
bay, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry sheltered by front-gable hood, interior chimneys, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents, shed-roof addition on south elevation. 
William Wilson was a foreman at Trenton Cotton Mills. 

213a. Shed 
815 Jackson Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, German siding. 

214. Walter A. and Laura H. Blaine Jr. House 
817 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, front-gable screened porch with tapered posts on brick 
piers, 1/1 replacement sash, single-leaf entry, interior and end chimneys, brick 
foundation, vinyl German siding. Walter A. Blaine Jr. was a credit manager with Rustin 
Furniture Company. 



214a. Shed 
817 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, vinyl German siding. 

215. Horace and Spencer Turner House 
819 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof with front-gable wing, shed-roof porch with columns, III 
replacement sash, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. Horace 
Turner was a woodworker at Spencer Machine and Supply Company. It is not clear if his 
wife's name, Spencer, is a rnistake, or if she used her maiden name as her first name and 
Mr. Turner worked for her parents' company, or if her given name was Spencer and the 
company originated with her mother's family. 

215a. ShedIPoolhouse 
819 Jackson Street, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, vinyl siding. 

216. Robert and Dorothy Roseboro House 
821 Jackson Street, ca. 1949, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, III replacement sash, single-leaf entry, denticulated 
cornice, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Robert Roseboro was a teller at 
Citizens National Bank. 

216a. Shed 
821 Jackson Street, ca. 1940, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, metal, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry. 

217. Maxie R. and Bida F. Thomas House 
825 Jackson Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with central front-gable bay, 
shed-roof porch with square posts, 4/4, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, interior and fa~ade chimneys, 
brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents, German-sided garage with cupola on north 
elevation. Maxie R. Thomas was a mechanic with Carter Traveler Company. 

218. Adam M. and Ruby Gibson House 
829 Jackson Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing, 
shed-roof porch with metal post, 6/6 sash, fa9ade chimney, brick foundation, German 
siding, gable vents, rear deck. Adam M. Gibson was a mechanic with A. B. Carter, Inc. 



219. Rental House 
831 Jackson Street, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable entry porch with metal posts, 6/6 sash, end chinmey, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. Guy and Leona Thomas lived in this house in 1947. 
Guy Thomas was a plumber with R. Hamilton Plumbing. 

220. Bob G. and Katherine W. Roberts House 
833 Jackson Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, shed-roof entry porch with square posts, 6/6 and 8/8 
sash, interior chinmey, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents, rear deck. Bob G. 
Roberts was an assistant city engineer. 

221. Frederick and Mary E. Hayes House 
835 Jackson Street, 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, interior chinmey, 
vinyl siding in gable ends, gable vents. Under construction in 1953. Frederick Hayes was 
a federallRS agent. 

221 a. Carport 
835 Jackson Street, 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, metal carport with a front-gable roof. 

221b. Garage 
835 Jackson Street, 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf garage door, vinyl siding. 

LEE STREET 

East Side 

222. Apartment Building 
506 Lee Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, partial-width inset front 
porch with square columns and molded cornice, second-story rooms above the front 
porch, hip roof dormer, interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards. 

223. Homer R. and Ruth Chestnutt House 
508 Lee Street, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 



One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, replacement windows, replacement front 
door, front-gable porch with square posts on brick piers spanned by replacement 
balustrade, eave brackets, lattice-work attic vent, wood shingle siding above a continuous 
molding at the height of the window sills and weatherboards below. Homer Chestnutt 
was an officer manager and notary at Pinnix Land Company. 

224. Mack and Eunice Cloniger House 
510 Lee Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, triple-A cottage with Queen Anne elements, frame, 4/4 sash, front door with 
glazing above panels, hip-roof porch with turned posts, sawnwork brackets and 
sawnwork frieze, brick foundation, weatherboards. Mack Cloniger owned Wizard 
Bakery. 

224a. Garage 
510 Lee Street, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, side-gable roof, vinyl siding. 

225. Emmett D. and Kate M. Atkins House 
512 Lee Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

Two-story, transitional Craftsman-Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 111 sash with 
segmental blind arches over some, single-leaf glazed front door with rectangular transom 
and sidelights, hip-roof porch with stuccoed balustrade and vinyl replacement posts, 
gabled polygonal bay, interior chimneys, brick foundation, stucco with vinyl over soffits 
and in gable ends. Emmett Atkins owned Gazette Publishing Company. 

226. J. H. and Lottie Sims House 
514 Lee Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, side-gable roof, diamond-panel 1 sash, front-gable porch 
with square posts on battered brick piers, bargeboards with angled ends, stacked false 
beams on gable ends, flat watertable at the windowsill level intersects at comers to create 
angled projections, interior chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding. City 
Directories give no occupations for the Sirnses. 

227. S. G. and Mary B. Fry House 
516 Lee Street, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

One-story, Queen Anne, frame, high hip roof, 111 sash, front door with singled glazed 
panel, gabled donner on front roof slope, interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, front porch is missing but originally extended across fayade and wrapped 
around the southwest comer. City Directories give no occupations for the Frys. 

228. T. R. Cash House 



602 Lee Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, hip roof, 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry, low hip-roof 
porch with large square brick columns at the comers and square wooden posts between, 
deep eaves with flat modillions, bracketed shed stoop at side entrance, interior chimneys. 
T. R. Cash was a bookkeeper at Thomas and Forest. 

229. Giles D. and Amy S. Beal House 
606 Lee Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick with vinyl on woodwork, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, 
single-leaf entry, end chimney, gable-front portico with paired fluted columns, flat-roof 
sun room added to north elevation. Giles and Amy Beal owned Jacobs Furniture 
Company. 

230. R. F. and Mary Shelby House 
608 Lee Street, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof portico 
and side porch with square columns and roof balustrade, brick foundation, brick chimney 
on north elevation, weatherboards. R. F. Shelby was a photographer and owned Shelby'S 
Studio. 

231. Dr. Charles H. and Minnie Pugh House 
610 Lee Street, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, deep eaves with 
modillions, flat-roof portico with roof balustrade, Tuscan columns and modillions, 
enclosed flat-roof side porch, brick foundation, weatherboards. Similar to 608 Lee Street. 
Dr. Charles H. Pugh was a physician. 

232. Carl W. and Elizabeth McCartha House 
614 Lee Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, engaged 
two-story full width portico with square columns, chimney on south elevation. Carl W. 
McCartha was the principal of Central SchooL 

233. William and Clara Sparrow House 
702 Lee Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Period Cottage, brick with vinyl siding on the dormers, T-shaped 
gabled roof, 4/4 sash, single-leaf entry surrounded by broken pediment and pilasters, 
front door with four-light window, continuous pent roof across north gable end, shed 
dormer on south roof slope, hip dormer on front roof slope, wooden cornice above 



windows on fa9ade, brick chimney on south elevation. William Sparrow was a salesman 
with D. M. Iones and Company. 

234. Larkin Ellis and Lucille Rankin House 
704 Lee Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, clipped-side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, segmental arch glazed 
door with sidelights, inset screened porch, shaped exposed rafter ends, eyebrow vent in 
roofline above entrance bay, fa9ade chimney. 615 South York Street is the same design. 
Larkin Ellis Rankin was a filling station superintendent with Gulf Refining Company. 

235. Gordon Petty House 
708 Lee Street, ca. 1932, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, gabled portico 
with tapered square posts, brick chimney on south elevation, brick foundation, vinyl 
siding. City Directories list no occupation for Gordon Petty. 

236. Martin F. and Sarah R. Epps House 
710 Lee Street, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, side-gable roof with prominent projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 sash, gabled entry bay with rectangular openings between brick posts, brick chimney 
on north gable end, vinyl on gabled dormers that flank front-gable wing, molded cornice 
and rake, inset screened side porch. Martin F. Epps was aU. S. Internal Revenue Agent. 

237. Peter S. and Emily Peeples House 
712 Lee Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 4/4 sash, 
single-leaf entry, brick chimney on north elevation, engaged partial-width porch with 
metal posts, eyebrow attic dormer, gable returns. Peter S. Peeples was a manager with 
Manville-Ienckes Company Store. 

Vacant Lot 

West Side 

238. Spurrier Apartments 
501-505 Lee Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

Two-story, three-unit, transitional Craftsman-Colonial Revival, brick, hip roof, 6/6 and 
8/8 sash, some windows arranged in groups of three, center front door has sidelights, 
entrances have low hip-roof porticos with decorative metal posts, attic eyebrow vents, 
interior chimneys. 



239. G. F. White House 
507 Lee Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, transitional Queen Anne-Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof with front-gable 
wing, replacement windows, single-leaf entry, comer boards, partial-width porch with 
slender turned posts and simple balustrade, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. G. F. White was a printer with the Gastonia Daily Gazette. 

240. Rental House 
509 Lee Street, ca. 1915, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, hip roof, replacement windows, single-leaf entry with 
transom, shed dormer, inset screened porch, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. Originally a twin to 511 Lee Street; both houses share stone steps up from 
the street level. 

241. Rental House 
511 Lee Street, ca. 1915, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, hip roof, replacement windows, single leaf entry with 
transom and wide 6/6 sash sidelights, shed dormer, inset porch with Tuscan columns, 
interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. Originally a twin to 509 Lee Street; 
both houses share stone steps up from the street level. 

242. John C. and Reta B. Roberts House 
611 Lee Street, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, hip roof, 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights 
and transom, full-width hip-roof porch with gable over entrance bay and square brick 
posts, front-gable porte cochere, interior brick chimneys, vinyl siding in the gable ends. 
John C. Roberts was the secretary-treasurer of Ridge Mills Textiles, Inc. of South 
Carolina and the secretary of Flint Manufacturing Company, Inc. 

242a. Garage 
611 Lee Street, ca. 1936, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, side-gable roof, two bays, vinyl siding, replacement garage door. 

243. William and Ernestine Spencer House 
613 Lee Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with 
fanlight and sidelights, arched portico with arched ceiling and paired Tuscan columns, 
shutters with panels highlighted by pierced quatrefoil design above louvered panels, side 
porch with paired square posts and flat roof, interior corbelled chimney, brick foundation, 



weatherboards. William Spencer was the vice president of Spencer Lumber Company, 
Inc. and Security Building and Loan Association. 

243a. Garage 
613 Lee Street, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, side-gable roof, two bays, pent roof over entrance bays, weatherboards. 

244. Evan and Janet Glenn House 
615 Lee Street, ca. 1925, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 611 sash, modern entry with arched pediment, 
sidelights and glazed door, recently applied wood shingle siding, brick foundation, front 
entrance located in gable-front wing that, based on Sanborn maps, was originally an open 
front porch. Evan Glenn owned Armington Tailoring Company and Glenn Printing 
Company. 

245. Hugh and Sarah Rudisill House 
713 Lee Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 sash, 
single-leaf entry, flat-roof screened porch, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Hugh 
Rudisill was an office manager for Rex Mills. 

246. Jesse L. and Ruth Hart House 
715 Lee Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival cottage, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, 
shed-roof porch with paired square posts, small gabled dormers on front roof slope, 
interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Jesse L. Hart was a meat 
manager with A&P Food Stores. 

247. Henry W. and Elizabeth Holmes House 
717 Lee Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side gable roof, 10/10 sash, weatherboards on gabled attic vent dormers, 
interior chinmey, rear ell set at angle to house. Henry Holmes was a supervisor with 
Akers Motor Lines. 

247a. Garage 
717 Lee Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, one-bay, front-gable roof, weatherboards, flat-roof carport attached to north 
elevation. 

NEIL STREET 



East Side 

248. House 
604 Neil Street, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick with vinyl siding on shed dormer, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof screened porch added to fa<;:ade. House is under 
construction on 1930 Sanborn Map. The address is first listed in the 1942 city directory, 
at which time Willis J. and Pearle Holder live there. Willis J. Holder was a manager with 
Armour and Company. 

248a. Garage 
604 Neil Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, front-gable roof, two bays, Masonite siding. 

Vacant Lot 

249. George G. and Pauline Atkins House 
610 Neil Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-and-a-half-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf 
entry with three-light transom, gabled dormers on front roof slope, brick chimney on 
south gable end, brick foundation, German siding. George G. Atkins was a salesman. 

250. J. Robert and Grace Wright House 
612 Neil Street, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 sash, arched window in front­
gable end, single-leaf entry sheltered by gabled hood, interior chimney, gabled dormers 
with vinyl siding on front roof slope. J. Robert Wright was a teller and manger of the real 
estate department at First National Bank. 

251. William A. and Hilda S. Robinson House 
614 Neil Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, brick chimney on south elevation, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. William A. Robinson sold office equipment. 

252. Clyde W. and Janice W. McLean House 
706 Neil Street, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 and leaded-glass multi-light/I sash, 
front-gable porch with brick posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, eave brackets, 
wood shingle siding. House is on 1930 Sanborn Map. Clyde W. McLean was the 



\ 

secretary of Everett J. Jones, Inc. and an agent with the Life Insurance Company of 
Virginia. 

253. Edwin M. Rudisill House 
710 Neil Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 2/2 horizontal sash, 
single-leaf entry, interior brick chimney, weatherboards in gable ends. Edwin Rudisill 
was an engineer with Cocker Machine and Foundry Company. 

254. House 
712 Neil Street, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, gabled entrance bay with arched 
openings, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof porch, interior brick chimney, brick 
foundation, German siding, attached car port, small gabled brick addition on south 
elevation. 

255. Virginia H. Wilson House 
902 Neil Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl windows, single-leaf entry sheltered by 
bracketed gabled hood, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Virginia 
Wilson was a saleswoman at Efirds. 

256. Fred and Mildred Schlaenhauf Jr. House 
904 Neil Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing at south end of facade, 
vinyl windows, shed-roof front porch across eave wall of facade, interior brick chimney, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. Fred Schlaenhauf Jr. was a mechanic at Loughridge 
Motors. 

257. Farris W. and Angie D. MacKay House 
906 Neil Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, shed-roof front porch, interior brick stack, 
brick foundation, aluminum siding. Farris W. MacKay was in the United States Merchant 
Marines. 

West Side 

258. Spencer House 
609 Neil Street, ca. 1927, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick with vinyl on woodwork, hip roof with hipped wing 
on fayade, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights and transom, exterior chimney on 



south elevation decorated with a lozenge pattern of glazed headers, partial-width porch 
with vinyl posts. The current owner, Ann Lamm, stated that the house was built in the 
1920s by the Spencers, who owned a lumber company. (Home Lumber Company was 
located one block south until the early 1920s.) The Witten family owned it after the 
Spencers and the Lamms bought it from the Wittens. The street was fIrst listed in the city 
directories in 1927-28, but no names or addresses were given. In 1934, when addresses 
appeared for the fIrst time, the Wittens occupied the house. Construction date based on 
Sanborn Maps and current owner's estimate. 

258a. Garage 
609 Neil Street, ca. 1927, Contributing Building 

One-story, one bay, brick, hip roof; matches house. Shown with house on 1930 Sanborn 
Map. 

259. George A. and Mary D. Langston House 
611 Neil Street, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/1 sash, gabled 
entry bay with arched opening and round-arch front door, porch with round-arch 
openings, brick fayade chimney with arched patterns, vinyl-sided gabled dormer with 
arched attic vent. George A. Langston was an assistant district manager for the Life 
Insurance Company of Virginia. 

260. William B. and Jessie N. McKee House 
613 Neil Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, vinyl siding, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 sash, 
gable-front entry bay with round-arch door, brick fayade chimney. City Directories list no 
occupations for the McKees. 

261. Duplex 
615-617 Neil Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, frame, side-gable roof, replacement windows, inset entry porches, 
interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards. James R. and Ann M. Healms 
and Ruth McHugh were the fIrst occupants. James R. Healms was an assistant secretary 
at Groves Threads. Ruth McHugh was a teacher at Peedin School. 

262. Glenn Pinland House 
705 Neil Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, asymmetrical fayade, louvered front door, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding, large rear gabled ell. City Directories list no occupation 
for Glenn Pinland. 



263. Sarah M. White House 
707 Neil Street, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roofwith front-gable wing, 6/6 sash, recessed entry, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. Sarah M. White was an executive secretary with the Gastonia 
Industrial Conunission. 

264. House 
709 Neil Street, ca. 1997, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, gabled entry porch, brick foundation, vinyl 
siding. Current tenant said house was rebuilt after fire around 1997. 

265. Duplex 
711 Neil Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal sash, inset porch at one entry, 
interior brick chimney. 

266. Robert D. and Lola A. Moore House 
713 Neil Street, ca. 1940, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, brick 
foundation, board-and-batten siding under porch, vinyl siding on rest of house. Robert D. 
Moore was a bookkeeper with Gastonia Combed Yam Corporation. 

Vacant Lot 

SOUTH STREET 

East Side 

267. Congregation Emanuel Synagogue 
320 South Street, 1929, Contributing Building 

After worshiping in the few Jewish homes in Gastonia during the early twentieth century, 
David Lebovitz, the first Jewish resident of Gastonia, led the efforts to construct a 
synagogue in Gastonia. In 1929, the congregation broke ground and the first services 
were held in the new building on January 1, 1930. In 1949, $25,000 worth of building 
improvements were underway. The two-story, brick building presents a commanding 
temple-front edifice with Doric pilasters supporting a classical pediment. The pediment's 
heavy cornice extends around the entire building. Above the pediment's rake, a parapet 
rises, topped with a Star of David at its apex. The entrance features two paneled leaves 
decorated with Jewish symbols in each panel and a stained glass transom. Long stained 
glass windows, now protected with modem storm windows, occupy the side elevations. 
Smaller, 6/6 sash punctuate the rear elevation. 



268. Craig-Quinn House 
410 South Street, ca. 1908, Contributing Building 

Two-story, transitional Queen Anne-Colonial Revival, frame, slate hip roof with a hipped 
wing and hipped dormer on the front slope, 111 sash, single-leaf entry with transom and 
sidelights, hip-roof porch with pediment over entrance bay and Tuscan columns wraps 
around southwest comer, balcony and polygonal bay occupy the second floor of the 
hipped wing, flat-roof addition in front ofthe polygonal bay, interior brick chimneys, 
brick foundation, weatherboards. This house is the only dwelling on the block on the 
1915 Sanborn Map. Its address is 408. City Directories indicate a Mrs. G. J. Craig was 
living on this block of South Street in 1910-1911, but no street number is given. In the 
1913-1914 directory, Miss Mae Quinn is living at 408 South Street. 

268a. Garage Apartment 
410 South Street, ca. 1908, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, frame, front-gable roof with a pent roof on the lower level on the west 
elevation, screen porch on upper level on north elevation. Originally a one-story garage; 
one-story as late as 1950. 

Vacant Lot 

269. J. A. Eskridge House 
414 South Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, front-gable roof, 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
porch with battered posts on brick piers, three shed dormers on each roof slope, interior 
brick chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding with wood shingles on gable ends and 
dormers, eave brackets. City Directories list no occupation for J. A. Eskridge. It is likely 
this house was rental property because it and two others stood on the same parcel ofland. 

270. Office Building 
418 South Street, ca. 1981, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 4/4 sash, recessed entry, brick foundation, vertical 
wood siding. 

271. W. E. Jenkins House 
502 South Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Craftsman, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 and 4/1 sash, single-leaf French door 
with Craftsman sidelights, pent roof over two second-story windows on fayade, front­
gable porch with brick posts that flare at their bases, gabled wing on south elevation, 
gabled porch over side entry on north elevation, interior brick chimneys, brick 
foundation, weatherboards with shingles on gable ends, eave brackets. City Directories 
list no occupation for W. E. Jenkins. A smaller house was on this site in 1915. 



272. John W. and Elda Walters House 
504 South Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival cottage, frame, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf glazed front 
door flanked by sidelights, gabled donner with Palladian window on front roof slope, 
wrap-around porch with Tuscan columns, interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. John W. Walters managed Waiters Barber Shop. 

273. Rental House 
508 South Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, triple-A roof, detailed comerboards, 111 replacement windows, single­
leaf entry with sidelights, hip-roof porch with Tuscan columns and small pediment over 
entry bay, interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboard fa~ade with asbestos 
on side elevations. The house had numerous occupants in the early twentieth century, 
probably indicating that it was rental property. 

Vacant Lot 

274. Frank and Sadie Suggs House 
512 South Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof with wide shed donner, 
6/1 sash, bay window on fa~ade, single-leaf entry, partial-width porch with paired square 
posts wraps around southwest comer, interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. Frank Suggs was an engineer with Cocker Machine and Foundry 
Company. 

275. Thomas and Zoe Brockman House 
514 South Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, bungalow, 15/1 and 9/1 sash, single-leaf entry, engaged wrap-around 
partially-screened porch with square posts on brick piers, gabled donner on front roof 
slope, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. Thomas Brockman was a 
cotton grader at Gray Manufacturing Company. 

276. J. H. Craig House 
516 South Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry with pilasters 
and arched entablature, hipped donner, hipped portico with fluted columns, one-story 
hip-roof addition on south elevation, interior brick chimneys, weatherboards. 

277. House 
702 South Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, interior and end chimneys, 
brick foundation, aluminum siding, louvered shutters. 

278. House 
704 South Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, 
paneled front door, chimney on north gable end, brick foundation, aluminum siding, 
louvered shutters. 

279. Floyd P. and Violet Hendrix House 
708 South Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
porch with decorative iron posts, brick foundation, asbestos siding. Floyd P. Hendrix 
worked at Gastonia Processing. 

280. House 
814 South Street, ca. 1911, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, modem replacement windows, single-leaf entry under 
gabled portico with vertical wood siding that terminates in a scalloped edge, brick 
foundation, aluminum siding. Based on Sanborn Maps, this house was not in this location 
in 1950; it may have been moved here from the location of 826 South Street or from the 
north side of Seventh Avenue near the South Street intersection when Seventh was 
realigned to become Garrison Avenue. 

281. House 
824 South Street, ca. 1955, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl replacement windows, single-leaf entry 
sheltered by gabled portico, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 

282. House 
826 South Street, ca. 1958, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick and vertical vinyl siding, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, inset porch. 

283. House 
902 South Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick and vertical wood siding, side-gable roof, fixed sash windows, 
recessed entry, brick chimney on south gable end. 



284. House 
904 South Street, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, L-shaped gabled roof, metal frame windows, recessed single­
leaf entry, interior brick chimney, inset carport, gable-end eaves angle back from the peak 
towards the house. 

285. Richard and Mary W. Henderson House 
906 South Street, ca.1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, replacement 
windows, round-arch front door, asymmetrical fac;ade chinmey, six-light attic window, 
screened porch on north gable end. Richard Henderson was a manger at Maxwell 
Brothers. 

286. House 
908 South Street, ca. 1951, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick with vinyl siding under porch, side-gable roof, vinyl windows, 
single-leaf entry on side elevation of inset porch, gabled portico with vinyl siding and 
vinyl posts projects over recessed central bay, interior brick chimney. 

287. Joseph and Sara Abernethy House 
910 South Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof, 4/4, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, recessed entry, brick 
chimney on north gable end between house and screened side porch. Joseph Abernethy 
was a superintendent with the city's Light, Water, and Sewerage Department. 

288. House 
1000 South Street, ca. 1957, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, singe-leaf entry, brick chimney on 
north gable end between house and screened porch. 

289. House 
1004 South Street, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, brick chimney on 
north gable end between house and screened porch. 

290. House 
1006 South Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 



One-story, Ranch, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, steep gable over 
entry bay with recessed front door, interior brick chimney, inset screen porch on 
southwest comer. 

291. Ethel A. Riols House 
1104 South Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Rustic Revival, stone, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, replacement 
windows, round-arch door in gabled entry bay, fa9ade chimney, screen porch on south 
gable end. Ethel Riols was a service representative for TelCo. 

292. Nelson and Bertha Kessell House 
1106 South Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 sash, front 
door recessed in gabled entry bay, tapered fa9ade chimney, screened porch on south 
gable end. Nelson Kessell was a general superintendent at Firestone Mill. 

West Side 

293. Jessie and Mary Hovis House 
405 South Street, ca 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, triple-A roof, 2/2 horizontal sash, some windows removed and 
openings covered with weatherboards, replacement door, hip-roof porch with 
replacement metal posts, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, rear 
addition. Jessie Hovis was a carpenter. 

294. James C. and Evelyn Quinn House 
407 South Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at north end of facade, 
6/1 sash with narrow 111 sidelights, battered brick piers and brick wall surrounding front 
patio, flat-roof sunroom at south elevation, gabled rear wing, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, eave brackets. James Quinn was a barber. 

294a. Garage 
407 South Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete block, hip roof, two bays. 

295. R. A. Rankin House 
409 South Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, clipped-side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, glazed door with sidelights, clipped­
front-gable porch with square posts, exterior brick chimney on north elevation, brick 
foundation, weatherboards. City Directories lists no occupation for R. A. Rankin. 



296. William P. and Susan Gibbons House 
417 South Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, Neoclassical, frame, side-gable roof, leaded glass windows in main section, 
flat-roof front porch with Ionic columns and roof balustrade, hip-roof dormers with 
casement windows, small side-gabled auxiliary entry wing on south elevation, brick 
foundation, weatherboards. William Gibbons worked at the Gastonia Cycle Company. 

296a. Garage 
417 South Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, clipped-front-gable roof, German siding. 

296b. Shed 
417 South Street, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, plywood siding. 

297. Robert B. and Edna J. Almand 
419 South Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, clipped-front-gambrel roof, replacement windows and door, hip-roof 
front porch with square posts on brick piers, brick foundation, vinyl siding, hip-roof wing 
and additions at rear. Robert Almand was a bookkeeper for Adams Ice & Coal Company. 

297a. Garage 
419 South Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 4/4 sash, sliding garage doors, weatherboards, exposed 
rafter ends. 

298. W. Edward and Fannie L. Jenkins 
421 South Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, hip roof, replacement windows, partially enclosed hip­
roof wrap-around porch, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Edward Jenkins was a 
salesman at A. J. Kirby & Company, a music store at 221-223 E. Main Street. 

298a. Garage 
421 South Street, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, gambrel roof, double-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

298b. Shed 
421 South Street, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 



One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

299. House 
501 South Street, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl windows, gabled front porch, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding. 

300. Clifford L. and Pauline Latta House 
503 South Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 windows, gabled portico with arched ceiling 
flanked by flat-roofed sections, square porch posts, projecting side-gable bay on south 
elevation, brick foundation, wood shingle siding. Clifford Latta worked at the Ford Motor 
Company. 

301. Lester W. and Norman Kellner 
505 South Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 and 811 sash, front-gable porch with 
square posts spanned by wood railing, porte cochere with turned columns at north end of 
porch, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, eave brackets. Norman Kellner worked at 
Kellner Cotton Company. 

302. Rufus A. and Minnie Rankin House 
507 South Street, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 111 sash, shed-roof 
dormer, inset wrap-around porch with battered posts on brick piers, secondary entrance at 
back of wraparound porch, early sunroom addition at south elevation, weatherboards with 
shingle siding on dormer. Rufus Rankin was part-owner in the Rankin-Armstrong 
Company, which sold furniture and house furnishings at 123 W. Main Street. 

303. William F. and Alice Kinkaid House 
509 South Street, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

Two-and-a-half-story, frame, hip roof, 111 sash and multilight casement windows, 
partially enclosed hip-roof wrap-around porch, large gable dormer in front roof slope 
with window removed, brick foundation, weatherboards, converted to apartments. The 
city directory lists William Kinkaid as a superintendent but does not list a company. 

304. Thomas H. and Maude Tyson House 
511 South Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 



One-and-one-half-story, frame, cross-gable roof, replacement door and windows, hip­
roof wrap-around porch on hefty square brick columns, brick foundation, wood shingle 
siding. Thomas Tyson was a conductor with the P&N Railway and Maude Tyson worked 
at the Wizard Bakery Company. 

305. John T. and Eula Lineberger House 
607 South Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, blonde brick, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, glazed paneled door, 
gabled dormer, metal-roofed side-gable porch with porte cochere at south end, low-pitch 
gabled rear addition. John Lineberger was president/treasurer/manager of Gastonia 
Bottling Company. 

306. A. A. and Laurel Team House 
609 South Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, hip roof with hip-roof bays at side elevations, 6/1 sash, 
replacement door, inset front porch with replacement posts and railing, two interior brick 
chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards. A. A. Team was assistant manager at the 
Hoyle Motor Company. 

307. Rufus B. and Carrie Wilson House 
611 South Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with off-centered projecting 
gabled bay and slightly projecting gabled entry, 6/6 sash, paneled door, interior brick 
chinmey, brick foundation, weatherboards, gabled addition at rear. Rufus Wilson was a 
salesman at Spencer Lumber Company. 

308. James W. and Sarah S. Powell House 
613 South Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side gable roof, paired 6/6 sash, gabled portico 
with slender square posts, shed-roof screened porch at rear, interior brick chinmey, brick 
foundation, weatherboards. James Powell was a teacher at Gastonia High School. 

309. Berta Jenkins House 
615 South Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, replacement door, 
gabled portico with metal posts, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Berta Jenkins was 
the widow of George A. Jenkins. 

310. Jacob and Fannie Gottlieb House 
701 South Street, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 



Two-and-one-half-story, Period Cottage, frame, cross-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, inset 
entry porch at south end of facade, side doors on each side elevation, vinyl-sided gabled 
dormers on front and rear roof slopes, interior corbelled brick chimney, brick veneer with 
masonite on exterior walls at porch, vinyl-sided gable wing and shed-roof addition at 
rear. Jacob Gottlieb was a textile manufacturer. 

311. Howard C. and Susan Moore House 
703 South Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with cross-gable porch and wing at facade and 
projecting gabled bay at west end of north elevation, porch supported by trios of Tuscan 
columns, interior brick chimney and exterior brick chimney at north elevation flanked by 
stained-glass windows, vinyl replacement windows elsewhere, brick foundation, vinyl 
siding. Howard Moore was a manager with Armour & Company, wholesale provisions. 

312. Thomas Leavitt House 
707 South Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, front-gable roof, 411 windows, gabled portico with wood 
posts at south end of facade, large gabled dormer on north slope of roof, gabled bay 
projects from east end of south elevation, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, eave brackets. Thomas Leavitt was a clerk with Textiles Inc. 

3l2a. Garage 
707 South Street, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, German siding. 

313. Hugh W. and Bettie Lindsay House 
709 South Street, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 8/1 sash, screened front-gable porch, 
interior brick chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding, eave brackets. Hugh Lindsay 
was a clerk at J. L. Adams Drug Store. 

314. Caldwell E. and Grace Baker House 
711 South Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, frame, side gable roof with projecting gabled bay with eave 
extending over round-arch opening into recessed porch, 6/6 sash, replacement door, brick 
foundation, German siding. Caldwell Baker was a city fireman. 

315. Roy L. Hamilton House 
713 South Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
exposed basement at rear, vinyl siding. Roy Hamilton was a plumber. 

315a. Garage 
713 South Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete block, front-gable metal roof. 

316. Frank T. and Mary A. Gabryelski House 
811 South Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash at facade, 6/6 sash elsewhere, front-gable 
porch with metal posts and railing, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, 
shed-roofed addition at rear. Frank Gabryelski was a fireman at Dallas Mills. 

317. Fred o. and Mary E. Stroupe House 
813 South Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, vinyl windows, front-gable porch at south end of 
facade, shed-roof side entry bay added to north elevation, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 
Fred Stroupe was a fixer at Myers Mill. 

318. House 
819 South Street, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, vinyl windows, inset porch across facade supported 
by square posts, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 

319. Forest D. and Jettie L. Morris House 
825 South Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at north end of facade, 
6/6 sash, shed-roof entry porch immediately south of bay at center of facade, brick 
foundation, German siding, shed-roof rear room. Forest Morris was the owner of the 
Morris Barber Shop. 

320. Leon B. and Ruby Q. Burnett House 
827 South Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at north end of facade, 
6/6 sash, replacement door, shed-roof entry porch immediately south of bay at center of 
facade, brick foundation, vinyl siding, shed-roof rear room. Leon Burnett was a clerk at 
the post office. 

321. Duplex 
901-903 South Street, ca. 1958, Noncontributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable central bay, replacement 
windows, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Marion Sowell owned the duplex in 1958 and 
lived in the 903 side with his wide Nina. Marion Sowell worked as superintendent of 
Southeastern Construction. 

321a. Carport 
901-903 South Street, ca. 1958, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, flat metal roof, metal; posts. 

321b. Shed 
901-903 South Street, ca. 1958, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, concrete block, shed roof, single-leaf entry. 

322. W. Leo and Joyce B. Stewart House 
905 South Street, ca 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl windows, single-leaf entry with pilasters, interior 
brick chimney, brick foundation, German siding at south end of facade, vertically 
grooved plywood siding elsewhere, rear gabled addition. 

323. Lloyd C. and Jessie L. Hoffman House 
907 South Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, recessed front entry, inset porch on south end 
supported by square posts, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards and 
vertical board siding, German siding on rear gabled additions. Lloyd Hoffman was the 
department manager at Jacobs Beal Furniture. 

324. Ralph and Bessie Dixon House 
909 South Street, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 and 2/1 sash, battered porch 
posts on brick piers, porte cochere with battered posts on brick piers is partially enclosed 
as screened porch, brick foundation, weatherboards, eave brackets, exposed rafter ends. 
Bessie Dixon was a nurse. 

325. Ernest L. and Lucille H. Klutz Jr. House 
911 South Street, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at north end offacade, 
shed-roof porch across remaining portion of facade, replacement windows, exterior brick 
chimney on south elevation, shed-roof rear addition. Ernest Klutz was a manager at 
Efird's. 



326. House 
1001 South Street, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story-on-basement, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, inset front porch, basement 
garage. 

327. House 
1003 South Street, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash and picture window with multi-light sidelights, 
inset front entry, interior brick chimney. 

327a. Garage 
1003 South Street, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, one bay garage with gable-end addition. 

SOUTH YORK STREET 

East Side 

328. Zoe Rankin House 
302 South York Street, ca. 1912, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Prairie-influenced Craftsman, hip roof, 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and transom, gabled dormer, shallow-pitch front-gable porch with 
weatherboarded posts and square stylized Craftsman columns, interior brick chimneys, 
brick foundation, mitered weatherboards below wood shingle siding on the upper level, 
deep eaves. Zoe Rankin was the widow of Rufus Rankin. 

329. Samuel A. and Sue Robinson House 
310 South York Street, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable slate roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with 
rectangular transom, pilasters and sidelights, arched carved panel above transom mimics 
fanlight, arched portico with arched and paneled ceiling, slender columns with acanthus 
capitals, wide frieze with corner blocks featuring oval sunbursts, Greek fretwork on 
portico cornice, cornice on main house features Greek key and bead-and-reel molding, 
gabled dormers with arched windows and Classical molding, interior brick chimneys, 
brick foundation, weatherboards. Outstanding example of the Colonial Revival style. 
Designed by Hugh White. House built to replace older Robinson House. Original house 
on 1915 Sanborn Map; new house on 1922 map. 

330. Joseph and May Gray Separk House I 
316 South York Street, ca. 1900, moved ca. 1920, Contributing Building 



One-and-one-half-story, Queen Anne, frame, complex hip, gable and clipped-gable slate 
roof with numerous gabled dormers, 1/1 and diamond-light/I sash, stained-glass oval and 
rectangular windows, single-leaf glazed entry with rectangular transom, wrap-around 
porch with Tuscan colunms and simple balustrade with orbs inserted between the 
balusters to create a swag, pebbledash in front gable, brick foundation, weatherboards, 
elaborate oak woodwork on interior. Moved from 209 West Second Avenue around 1920 
to make room for the Joseph and May Gray Separk House II. Replaced older house at 
314 South York Street shown on 1915 map. Based on City Directories, W. Neal and May 
Etta Davis (he was Gaston County sheriff in 1918), lived in the earlier house at 314 South 
York Street and in the Separk House after it was moved to South York. 

331. Commercial Building 
332 South York Street, ca. 1972, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, flat roof, flat-roof portico, molded cornice, north wing with arched 
arcade. 

332. Family Dentistry 
414 South York Street, ca. 1967, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Modernist, brick, front-gable roof, fixed-sash windows, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, recessed central bay flanked by steps, inset porch with square posts and 
exposed beams. 

333. J. B. and Lillian Steele House 
424 South York Street, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

Two-story, transitional Craftsman-Colonial Revival, frame, slate hip roof, 8/1 and III 
sash, single-leaf French door with sidelights, entry portico with Tuscan columns and 
carved brackets, side porches with brick colunms on north and south elevations, slate­
covered gable-front dormer on front roof slope, brick chimney on south elevation, brick 
foundation, weatherboards. J. B. Steele was a county farm demonstration agent. A 
different house is shown at this location on the 1915 Sanborn Map. This house appears on 
the 1922 map. 

334. John P. and Elva R. Chandler House 
504 South York Street, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, clipped-side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry 
with sidelights and transom, window hoods over lower level windows on fayade, flat-roof 
entry portico with Tuscan colunms, side porch on north elevation with square pebbledash 
colunms and enclosed second-story sleeping porch, enclosed side porch on south 
elevation, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, pebbledash. Based on Sanborn Maps 
and city directories, this house replaced an earlier one-story house, also belonging to the 



Chandlers. John P. Chandler owned Rankin-Chandler Furniture Company. Elva 
Chandler's maiden name was Rankin. 

335. Albert E. and Daisy Woltz House 
508 South York Street, ca. 1916, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, vinyl replacement windows, single-leaf 
entry with sidelights and transom, enclosed hip-roof porch with battered posts on brick 
piers and roof balustrade over entry bay, brick foundation, vinyl siding, large addition on 
rear elevation. 

335a. Garage Apartment 
508 South York Street, ca. 1925, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, modem replacement windows, brick foundation, vinyl siding, 
porch added at upper level. 

336. Woods and Kathleen Garland House 
510 South York Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable slate roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and transom, flat-roof portico with paired square columns, gabled dormers on 
front roof slope, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Woods Garland was the City Attorney 
and an attorney in private practice. The Garlands lived in the house at 516 South York 
from at least 1918 until they built this house. 

337. Samuel and Janie E. Gillfian House 
514 South York Street, ca. 1905, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, triple-A roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights and transom, 
wrap-around porch with Tuscan columns, brick foundation, weatherboards. Samuel 
Gillfian was a foreman at The Page Company. 

337a. Shed 
514 South York Street, ca.l905, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, weatherboards. 

338. M. A. Ashby House 
516 South York Street, ca. 1916 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, 
dominant front-gable porch with round columns and a recessed balcony set into the gable 
end, interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding. House is repeated at 701 
South York Street. M. A. Ashby was a Reverend. 



339. George B. and Violet Mason House 
518 South York Street, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 12/1 sash windows, arched panel 
over front door to simulate fanlight, flat-roof wrap-around porch with slender paired 
columns, flat-roof side porch on south elevation with slender columns, interior brick 
chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gabled addition on north elevation built 
between 1922 and 1930. George B. Mason was an attorney. 

339a. Garage Apartment 
518 South York Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, 111 sash, two garage bays, weatherboards. 

340. Lawrence and Sadie Rankin House 
602 South York Street, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, side-gable roof with asphalt shingles, replacement 
windows, recessed front door, full-height front-gable portico with square columns and a 
lunette panel in the gable end, end brick chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding 
with stucco under porch. Lawrence Rankin was the vice-president of Gastonia Insurance 
Agency and an agent with Sinclair RefIning Company. 

341. Henry H. and Annie Jordan House 
606 South York Street, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Prairie-influenced Craftsman, frame, hip roof, 6/1 and 1/1 sash, shed hood 
shelters single-leaf entry, center bay slightly off-center, hip-roof side porches on each 
comer with brick posts, interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards. Henry 
H. Jordan was the presiding elder of the Shelby District Methodist Episcopal Church. 

342. Yonts and Esther M. McArver House 
608 South York Street, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, bay windows flank 
louvered front door, gabled dormers on front roof slope, interior brick chimney, brick 
foundation, aluminum siding. Younts McArver was a bookkeeper with Piedmont Iron 
Works. 

343. Apartment Building 
610-616 South York Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, side-gable roof, replacement windows, two front doors with six lights 
in each, flat-roof portico with metal posts and a metal roof balustrade over front doors, 
side porches on each gable end, interior brick chimneys. 



344. Lucille M. Hutchinson House 
618 South York Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and fanlight, gabled portico with arched ceiling and columns, brick chimney on 
south gable end, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Lucille Hutchinson was the widow of 
Edwin Hutchinson. 

345. Beal-Ragan House 
706 South York Street, designed 1924, occupied ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Mediterranean Revival, blonde brick, red tile hip roof, 8/8 sash, brick soldier 
course outlines an arch over the single-leaf front door, French doors below blind arches 
punctuate the fa9ade, flat-roof portico with paired square columns and roof balustrade, 
hipped dormers on front roof slope, brick chimneys on the north and south elevations 
between the house and side porches, north porch is screened, south porch is enclosed sun 
room. Hugh White designed the house in 1924, but John and Mary Beal did not occupy 
the house until around 1928, based on City Directory entries. C. W. Spencer was the 
contractor. John Beal sold builders and office supplies and served as a county 
commissioner. Caldwell Ragan, a member of one of Gastonia's prominent textile 
families, purchased the house in 1935. 

345a. Garden 
706 South York Street, ca. 1928, Contributing Site 

The Beal-Ragan lot extends south and contains a sunken garden bordered on three sides 
by a high stone wall. On the western side, the wall terminates at the street level. An iron 
fence extends along the top of the wall on all three sides. 

346. Thomas and Emma Henry House 
710 South York Street, ca.1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights 
and transom, flat-roof entry portico with Tuscan columns and modillion cornice, hip-roof 
dormer on front roof slope, side porches on the north and south elevations, brick chimney 
on north elevation, exposed rafter ends. Thomas Henry owned Todd-Trower Tile 
Company. 

346a. Garage Apartment 
710 South York Street, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, green tile hip roof, 1/1 sash, two garage bays. 

347. Gastonia High School 
800 South York Street, designed 1922-1924, opened 1924, Contributing Building 



Designed by local architect Hugh White between 1922 and 1924 and opened for the 
1924-25 school year, Gastonia High School was one of the finest school buildings in the 
state at the time of its completion. Rising two stories above a raised basement, with a 
third story in the central frontispiece, the twenty-one bay building presents a monumental 
edifice to York Street. The red brick Tudor Gothic building features lavish limestone 
moldings and ornament including panels, finials, quoins, window hoods and window 
sills. A grand stone staircase leads to a double-leaf entry recessed in a Tudor arch 
opening. Windows retain transoms and 4/4 and 6/6 sash. The school originally had an E­
shaped footprint, but a 1954 addition between the south wing and the central wing altered 
the plan. The school boasted an auditorium with a $15,000 pipe organ, a swimming pool, 
a gymnasium and twenty-nine classrooms, each with its own telephone. The building has 
been converted for use as Ashley Arms Apartments and the athletic facilities, including a 
stadium, behind the school have been demolished. The mid-twentieth century gymnasium 
stands farther to the south (#114) while the ca. 1955 Vocational Building stands to the 
north (#107). 

348. Edgewood Apartments 
902-904 South York Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof with large gabled wing at rear, 6/6 
sash, two louvered front doors sheltered by a front-gable portico with square posts. 

349. Edgewood Apartments 
906-912 South York Street, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable with large gabled wing at rear that 
terminates at a side-gable wing, 6/6 sash, four louvered doors on fayade, front-gable 
portico shelters the two central doors, gabled hoods with arched ceilings shelter the doors 
on either side of the center doors, enclosed porches extend along both sides of the hyphen 
between the two side-gable sections. 

350. House 
914 South York Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and fanlight, shed-roof porch with paired columns and gable over center bay, 
porte cochere on north elevation with paired columns, enclosed side porch on south 
elevation, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding. 

350a. Garage Apartment 
914 South York Street, ca. 1940, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, replacement windows, enclosed garage bays, vinyl siding. 

351. House 
916 South York Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 



Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, hip roof, replacement windows, single-leaf entry, 
hip-roof porch with brick balustrade and vinyl replacement posts, hip-roof wing on south 
elevation, vinyl siding on soffits and hip-roof dormer on front roof slope. 

351a. Garage 
916 South York Street, ca. 1925, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, new door and windows, enclosed garage bay, vinyl siding. 

352. House 
918 South York Street, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Dutch Colonial Revival, frame, gambrel roof with large shed 
dormer on front roof slope, replacement windows with wood casement windows 
remaining on enclosed side porch on south elevation, single-leaf entry sheltered by 
bracketed gabled hood, porte cochere with replacement metal posts, interior brick 
chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding. 

353. House 
920 South York Street, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, frame, side-gable roof with two front gables, 616 sash, single­
leaf entry sheltered by aluminum awning, enclosed side porch on south elevation, attic 
window with diamond-shaped panes, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. 

354. Duplex 
922 South York Street, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick and asbestos siding, side-gable roof, 2/2 horizontal sash, single­
leaf entry, narrow inset porch, interior brick chimney. 

355. House 
924 South York Street, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, frame, L-shaped gabled roof, replacement windows, round­
arch front door in gabled entry bay, fayade chimney with arched panel of contrasting 
brick, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 

356. House 
926 South York Street, 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 8/8 sash, 
inset porch with metal posts, brick foundation, aluminum siding. 

Vacant Lot 



West Side 

357. Harper-Dixon House 
219 South York Street, ca. 1889, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, hip roof, 2/2 windows on main block, single-leaf entry, 
large shed dormer with 8/8 and 4/4 windows on fayade, wrap-around porch with 
bracketed square posts and wood picket railing, interior chimney, brick piers infilled with 
concrete block to form continuous foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents, one-story 
rear addition with 6/6 windows. Robert T. Harper was the original owner of this house. 
Dr. J. K. Dixon, an officer of Trenton Cotton Mills and mayor of Gastonia, was the 
subsequent owner. 

357a. Garage Apartment 
219 Y:z South York Street, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entries, enclosed garage bay, 
interior chimneys. 

358. Samuel and Stella Boyce House 
301 South York Street, designed 1928, completed 1929, Noncontributing 
Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, Flemish bond brick veneer, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, 
single-leaf entry with sidelights and fanlight, prominent full-height front-gable portico 
with stuccoed gable end, round window and columns with stylized acanthus capitals, 
lunette attic windows in gable ends, stone keystones above second floor windows and 
stone lintels above first floor windows, interior brick chimneys. An extremely large brick 
addition is attached to the rear elevation and extends the full depth of the block. Original 
house designed by Hugh White in 1928. Samuel Boyce was the president of the People's 
Bank, vice-president of Arlington and Flint Mills, vice-president/cashier of First National 
Bank and chair of the county board of education. 

Vacant Lot 

359. William E. and Rosa Haynes House 
311 South York Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable slate roof, 6/6 and 6/9 sash windows, 
single-leaf entry with sidelights and transom, panels below lower level windows, 
pedimented portico with Doric columns, denticulated cornice, brick chimney on south 
gable end. 

360. Grady and Ruth Rankin House 
317 South York Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 



Two-story, transitional Colonial Revival-Craftsman, brick, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, partially enclosed hip-roof porch with square paired posts terminates at a porte 
cochere on the north end, brick chimney on south elevation, exposed rafter ends. 

360a. Garage 
317 South York Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, front-gable roof, 4/4 sash, wooden garage doors. 

361. Office Building 
333 South York Street, ca. 1983, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 111 sash, broken pediment over 
single-leaf entry, inset porch with columns. 

362. Office Building 
401 South York Street, ca. 1981, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 111 sash, eight-panel doors, gabled portico with metal 
posts. 

363. Office Building 
403 South York Street, ca. 1981, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable projection covered with vertical wood 
siding, 111 sash, eight-panel doors. 

364. John W. Boyce House 
407 South York Street, ca. 1912, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, partially enclosed wrap-around 
porch with square posts spanned by modem metal balustrade, interior brick chimneys, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. 

365. Office Building 
413 South York Street, ca. 1984, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, front-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable porch. 

366. Office Building 
419 South York Street, ca. 1972, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, flat-on-hip roof, fixed-sash windows. 

367. John H. and Bertie Jenkins House 
429 South York Street, ca. 1912, Contributing Building 



Two-story, Queen Anne-Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, original aud replacement 111 
sash, hip-roof porch with columns aud pediment over entry bay, interior brick chimneys, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. John Jenkins was a physiciau. 

368. W. Hugh aud Kathleen Wray House 
431 South York Street, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, partially 
enclosed inset porch with battered posts on brick piers spanned by brick balustrade, brick 
wall in front of the porte-cochere on the north elevation, brick chimney on south gable 
end, brick foundation, vinyl siding. W. Hugh Wray was the president of Automotive 
Sales Compauy. 

369. David A. aud Juauita Garrison House 
501 South York Street, ca. 1912, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsmau, side-gable roof with large gabled dormer, diamond-pauell sash, 
single-leaf entry with sidelights, partially screened wrap-around porch with square 
paueled columns, balcony recessed in dormer, interior aud end chimneys, brick 
foundation, wood shingle siding aud mitered weatherboards. David Garrison was a 
physiciau. 

370. J. T. aud Lenora Spencer House 
505 South York Street, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsmau, frame, hip roof with front-gable wing, 2/2 sash, single-leaf entry, 
wrap-around porch with square posts, tripartite attic window, brick foundation, 
weatherboards with wood shingles in gables, eave brackets. J. T. Spencer was a house­
moving contractor. 

371. Forrest aud Mamie Lee Rockett House 
507 South York Street, ca. 1915, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof with gabled dormers on both roof slopes, 
111 sash, glazed front door with sidelights, wrap-around porch with square posts on brick 
piers, brick foundation, weatherboards with shingles on gable ends. Forrest Rockett was 
au assistaut postmaster. 

372. M. A. Carpenter House 
509 South York Street, ca. 1915, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Craftsmau, slate hip roof, replacement 111 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights aud trausom, wrap-around porch with tapered posts on brick piers aud hip-roof 
projection over entry bay, side elevations of porch are enclosed, interior brick chimneys, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding. City Directories list no occupation for M. A. Carpenter. 



373. Leonard and Rena Huffstetler House 
511 South York Street, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, clipped-side-gable roof with clipped-front-gable wing, 
eyebrow over the entrance bay of the porch, 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry, inset porch with 
tapered columns, interior brick chinmey, brick foundation, aluminum siding, exposed 
rafter ends. Leonard Huffstetler owned Huffstetler Brothers. 

374. Clyde C. and Johnnie Armstrong 
519 South York Street, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with leaded-glass 
sidelights and fanlight, segmental arch portico with slender columns, one-story gabled 
side wings with flat-roof side porches with paired posts and roof balustrades, brick 
chinmeys on gable ends, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Clyde C. Armstrong owned 
Gastonia Cotton Company and was the president or on the board of numerous firms. 

374a. Garage 
519 South York Street, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, three garage bays, 6/6 sash, vinyl siding. 

375. Carl E. and Ruth S. Carpenter House 
521 South York Street, ca. 1916, Contributing Building 

One-story, transitional Queen Anne-Colonial Revival, high hip roof with front-gable 
wing, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, wrap-around porch with battered posts on brick piers, 
interior brick chinmey, brick foundation, weatherboards. Carl E. Carpenter owned 
Carpenter and Carpenter. 

376. Waggoner and Wallace Office Building 
601 South York Street, ca. 1959, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Modernist, brick, T-shaped gable roof, metal-frame windows, cross gable 
terminates on the south with a porte cochere, front elevation of the cross gable is 
supported with round metal posts angled down and in from the eaves to the ground. 
Waggoner and Wallace were physicians. 

377. George B. and Violet Mason House 
607 South York Street, ca.1959, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/9 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, flat-roof porch with roof balustrade and slender columns, brick chinmey on 
north gable end, brick foundation, denticulated cornice, weatherboards with flush boards 
under the porch. George B. Mason was an attorney. 



378. Robert and Edna Crawford House 
611 South York Street, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, entry 
portico with roof balustrade and Tuscan columns, enclosed one-story side porches with 
roof balustrades on north and south elevations, interior brick chimney. Robert Crawford 
was a manager at Crawford and Company (real estate). 

379. Frank C. and Margaret Abernathy House 
613 South York Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, single-leaf entry with sidelights, gabled 
entrance portico with cornice returns and columns, screened side porch on south gable, 
interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Frank Abernathy was a cashier 
at Third National Bank. 

379a. Garage 
ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, one garage bay. 

380. Ed and Alice Adams House 
615 South York Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, frame, clipped-side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, segmental-arch front 
door flanked by sidelights, eyebrow in roofline over front door, inset screened porch on 
southeast comer, bay window on south elevation, stone chimneys on fa"ade and north 
gable end, wood shingle siding. 704 Lee Street is the same design executed in brick. Ed 
Adams worked at 1. H. Kennedy and Company. 

380a. Outbuilding 
615 South York Street, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, inset porch. 

381. Ellis and Jennie Rankin House 
701 South York Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, windows flank single leaf entry, 
dominant front-gable porch with square brick columns on the comers and wooden 
columns between, deeply-recessed balcony located in porch gable end, interior brick 
chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards with wood shingle siding in gable ends. House 
design is repeated at 516 South York Street. Ellis Rankin was the county auditor. 

382. William and Lucille Grier House 



707 South York Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, brick with vinyl siding on gable ends and donner, front-gable roof, 
3/1 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights and transom, donner on north roof slope, 
partially-inset porch with battered brick posts and brick balustrade, interior brick 
chimney. William Grier was the superintendent of Gastonia's school system in 1927. 

383. Robert G. and Mildred Cherry House 
711 South York Street, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, 8/1 and 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry with Craftsman 
sidelights, front porch with stone posts and stone balustrade, small gabled donner on 
front roof slope, Asian influence expressed through kicked roof and angled bargeboards, 
stone chimney on south gable end, weatherboards with mitered corners, wood shingle 
siding in gable ends, eave brackets. Robert G. Cherry was a co-owner of Bullwinkle and 
Cherry. 

384. Mrs. J. A. Spencer House 
713 South York Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Dutch Colonial Revival, frame, gambrel roof with large shed 
donner, 8/1 sash, flat-roof portico over front door, inset side porch on south end, interior 
brick chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding. 

384a. Garage 
713 South York Street, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, two garage bays with original wooden doors, wood 
shingle siding. 

Parking Lot 

385. Holy Trinity Evangelical Lutheran Church 
805 South York Street, 1950, Noncontributing Building 

Two-story, stripped Gothic Revival, brick, T -shaped gabled roof, Gothic arch windows 
with leaded glass and stone molding, double-leaf Gothic arch door with stone molding, 
stone molding along parapet and capping buttresses, 6/6 sash on rear wings, square tower 
on the north elevation with narrow louvered Gothic arch openings and a steeple. Holy 
Trinity was organized in 1899 and quickly built a sanctuary closer to downtown. The 
congregation constructed their second building in 1908. In the late 1940s, they purchased 
this lot and broke ground for this building in spring 1950. To the south, a large, one-story, 
brick addition houses classrooms and meeting space. Although constructed with similar 
design details as the original, the addition has a negative impact on the sanctuary's 
architectural integrity. 



Parking Lot 

Vacant Lot 

386. House 
909 South York Street, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof with gabled dormers on each 
roof slope, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable porch with large square columns at the 
comers and posts on brick piers flanking the entrance, interior brick chimneys, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding, eave brackets in gable ends. 

387. Long House 
911 South York Street, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl replacement windows, single-leaf 
entry, gabled portico with angled ceiling and slender columns, enclosed side porch on 
north gable end, gabled addition on south elevation, gabled dormers on front roof slope, 
interior brick chinmey, brick foundation, vinyl siding. According to the owner, the house 
initially belonged to the Long family. Fred Durst, son of a Gaston County Sheriff, and 
lead singer for the metal-hip hop hybrid band Limp Bizkit, spent his childhood in this 
house. 

388. Neon Sign Company 
927 South York Street, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete block, flat roof behind parapet with tile coping, metal sash and plate 
glass windows. Shown on 1930-1950 Sanborn Maps as "Neon Sign Mfg." 

389. Gas Station 
929 South York Street, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, hip roof, plate glass windows, enclosed garage bay, altered store front 
with modem windows and plywood, modillion cornice. 

WEST SECOND AVENUE 

North Side 

Vacant Lot 

390. Edward R. and Beulah Padgett House 
406 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, cross-gable roof, 3/1, 8/1 and 1011 sash, single-leaf entry, 
engaged front porch with square brick posts spanned by brick kneewall, end chimney, 



brick foundation, wood shingle siding, eave brackets, exposed rafter ends, two-story rear 
wing at angle to main block of house. Edward R. Padgett was a clerk at the post office. 

391. Maude Beatty House 
408 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, clipped-side-gable roof, 611 sash, single-leaf entry, front­
gable entry and side porches with tapered posts on brick piers spanned by brick 
kneewalls, end chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, eave brackets, exposed 
rafter ends. Maude Beatty was a clerk at the Kimbrough Company. 

392. R. O. Crawford House 
412 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 replacement sash, single-leaf entry, 
large front-gable dormer, hip-roof front porch with square posts on brick piers spanned 
by brick kneewall, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, eave brackets. R. O. 
Crawford owned R. O. Crawford & Company and was president of Peoples Drug Store. 

Vacant Lot 

393. J. Harvey and Mary A. Williams House 
502 West Second Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 611 sash on side elevations, 12/1 sash on fal(ade, single-leaf 
entry, shed dormer, engaged front porch with square posts, interior chimneys, stuccoed 
foundation, vinyl German siding. J. Harvey Williams was president-treasurer of Williams 
Piggly-Wiggly Inc. 

394. William J. and Janie Leaptrot House I 
504 West Second Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 611 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof front porch with 
aluminum columns, stuccoed end chimney, brick foundation, wide aluminum siding, 
wood wheelchair ramp. William J. Leaptrot was a salesman for the Rankin-Armstrong 
Company. 

395. William J. and Janie Leaptrot House II 
506 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, hip roof with projecting front-gable bay on west elevation, 
811 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer with 4-light sash and wood shingle siding, 
shed-roof front porch with brick posts spanned by wood railing, end chimney, brick 
foundation, weatherboards, eave brackets, exposed rafter ends, enclosed rear porch. 
William J. Leaptrot was a salesman for the Rankin-Armstrong Company. 



395a. Garage 
506 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, wide German siding. 

396. James N. and Gertrude Long House 
508 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 8/1 and 1011 sash, single-leaf entry, large 
shed dormer with 8/1 sash, engaged front porch with paired square posts on brick piers, 
interior chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding, rear deck. James N. Long was the 
manager of Gastonia Roofing and Sheet Metal Works. 

397. The Sign Mill, Inc. Office 
510 West Second Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with ridge vent, 6/6 and 9/9 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, front-gable entry porch with paired vinyl columns and round gable vent, brick 
foundation, vinyl German siding, attached single-bay garage. This building replaced the 
circa 1928 Grady M. and Catherine Ratchford House. Grady M. Ratchford was a clerk 
with the City of Gastonia Water and Light Department. 

398. Chalmers C. and Louise Johnson House 
516 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, wood shingle siding in 
gable ends, front-gable front porch with truncated posts on brick piers sparmed by wood 
railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, eave brackets, gable vents, 
rear addition with auxiliary entry. Chalmers C. Johnson worked for Piedmont Telegraph 
and Telephone Company. 

399. Blanche A. Galloway House 
518 West Second Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 212 horizontal and casement windows, 
single-leaf entry, wood shingle siding in gable ends, screened front-gable partial-width 
front porch with tapered posts on brick piers, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, eave brackets, gable vents, aluminum awnings. Blanche A. Galloway was 
a widow. 

400. John Y. and Laurie Todd House 
520 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, large front-gable 
dormer with 6/6 sash and wood shingle siding, engaged front porch with tapered brick 
posts and tapered wood posts on brick piers sparmed by wood railing, end chimney, brick 



foundation, weatherboards, eave brackets, exposed rafter ends. John Y. Todd was a 
special agent for Equitable Life Insurance Society. 

400a. Garage 
520 West Second Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, vinyl siding. 

South Side 

401. Joseph H. and May G. Separk House II 
209 West Second Avenue, 1919, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Mediterranean Revival, blond brick with granite quoins, hip roof with green 
tiles, 6/6, 9/9, 4/8 and 6/9 sash, French doors with arched transoms, recessed entry porch 
with square posts, end chimneys, eave brackets, front-gable dormer vent, flat-roofed one­
story sunporches at both ends, one-story flat-roofed rear addition. Joseph H. Separk was 
secretary of Gray Manufacturing Company in 1911. He was also involved with Arrow 
Mills, Parkdale Mills, Myrtle Mills, Arkway Mills, Priscilla Mills, Textiles, Inc. and the 
Separk Sales Company over the course of his career. The house was designed by C. C. 
Wilson of Columbia; Hugh White was the supervising architect. The Separks lived in the 
house until the late 1930s. H. K. and Thelma Herrin purchased the house from the 
Separks in 1942, and Mr. Herrin, and eye, ear and throat specialist, converted part ofthe 
first floor into a doctor's office. The Gaston County Medical Auxiliary used the house for 
social functions during the Herrins' residence. The Herrins sold the house to the Elk's 
Club in 1953 and the first floor was used as a restaurant and the second for meeting space 
until 1978. Jack Moss purchased the home in 1978 and operated a restaurant. The 
building has served as the York Chester Center law offices since 1980. 

40 I a. Garage/Office 
209 West Second Avenue, 1919, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, blonde brick, hip roof with green tiles, front-gable dormer, three­
bay garage now converted into office. 

402. Barkley-Meyers House 
211 West Second Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, low hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with leaded­
glass sidelights and fanlight, two-story full-width front porch with full entablature 
supported by Corinthian columns and pilasters, single-leaf door with leaded-glass 
sidelights and transom at second floor balcony, dentil and modillion cornice, end 
chimneys, eyebrow dormer vents, flat-roofed one-story sunporch on west elevation, 
enclosed porch on east elevation, two-story rear wing. Frederick D. Barkley was the 
manager of Frederick D. Barkley & Company in 1911 and president of the Gray-Barkley 
Company, cotion brokers, in 1924. He married Ethel Gray, whose family owned the 



block. Hugh White designed the house, which was purchased by Albert G. Myers, 
president of Citizens National Bank and People's Bonded Warehouse and Storage 
Company, and vice-president of Gastonia Realty and Insurance Company and Hanover 
Thread Company, in 1927. The Huey family purchased the house from the Myers estate 
in 1976, and the home is currently Antiques on Second and a Frame Gallery. 

402a. Garage/Apartment 
211 West Second Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, engaged comer porch with brick 
post, single-bay garage now converted into apartment. 

Vacant Lot 

403. Harry G. and Florence Utley House 
407 West Second Avenue, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, enclosed front comer porch with square brick 
posts, eyebrow dormer vents, one-story rear wing with second story frame addition. 
Harry G. Utley was a physician. 

404. Hallie K. Morrow House 
413 West Second Avenue, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-and-a-half-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, screened front­
gable front porch, interior chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Hallie K. 
Morrow was a stenographer. 

Parking Lot 

Vacant Lot 

Vacant Lot 

405. Fred A. and Myrtle Cathey House 
501 West Second Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights 
and transom, front-gable entry porch with paired square posts, hip-roof side porch with 
paired square posts, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Fred A. Cathey was 
secretary of Spencer Labor Company, Inc. 

405a. Garage 
501 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, shed roof, double-leaf door, weatherboards, brick foundation. 



406. 1. Bynum and Bright Long House 
505 West Second Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable donners with exposed 
rafter ends on north and east elevations, engaged front porch with tapered posts, end 
chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. 1. Bynum Long was a clerk at the Rankin­
Annstrong Company. 

407. Lynn W. and Gertrude Harkey House 
507 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-a-half-story, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
donner on east elevation, hip-roof front porch with square brick comer posts and 
truncated posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, vinyl Gennan siding. Lynn W. Harkey was a city councilman. 

407a. Shed 
507 West Second Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, gambrel roof, double-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

408. George A. W. and Myrtle E. Goebel House 
509 West Second Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 6/6 replacement sash, single-leaf entries, shed-roof front 
porch with metal posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. George A. W. 
Goebel was a laborer. The house is now a duplex. 

409. Susan Tate House 
511 West Second Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, front-gable roof, replacement sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, 
hip-roof wrap-around porch with square brick comer posts and truncated posts on brick 
piers spanned by brick kneewall, brick foundation, vinyl Gennan siding, gable vents. 
Susan Tate was a cook. The house has been divided into apartments. 

410. 1. Carr and Mabel M. Elliot House 
515 West Second Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Cape Cod, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 replacement sash, single-leaf entry, two 
front-gable donners, shed-roof entry porch with square posts and railing, end chimney, 
brick foundation, asbestos siding, one-bay garage on rear elevation. 1. Carr Elliot was 
chief of the City of Gastonia Police Department. 

411. William and Susan McConnell House 



517 West Second Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormers on east 
and west elevations, front-gable partial-width front porch with tapered posts on brick 
piers spanned by railing, brick foundation, vinyl German siding, concrete paver retaining 
wall. William McConnell was a farmer. 

412. Giles G. and Virginia P. Arndt House 
519 West Second Avenue, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with front gable, 6/6 sash, single­
leaf entry, brick stoop with metal railing, brick foundation, asbestos siding. Giles G. 
Arndt was a teller at the Citizens National Bank. 

413. George G. and Eliza L. Willis House 
521 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable partial-width 
front porch with four columns, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. George G. 
Willis was an assistant cashier at the Citizens National Bank. 

413a. Garage 
521 West Second Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, weatherboards, brick foundation. 

414. Marshall A. and Sallie Carson House I 
523 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormer, partially enclosed shed-roof front porch with tapered posts on brick piers 
spanned by brick kneewall, end chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, 
triangular eave brackets, brick retaining wall. Marshall A. Carson was a division track 
supervisor with the Southern Railway. 

414a. Shed 
523 West Second Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, gambrel roof, double-leaf door, wood panel siding. 

415. Marshall A. and Sallie Carson House II 
525 West Second Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 and 4/1 sash, single-leaf 
entry, front-gable dormers on east and west elevations, hip-roof screened front porch with 
tapered posts on brick piers, interior chimney, brick foundation, wide vinyl siding, 



triangular eave brackets, exposed rafter ends. This house was under construction in 1924 
and occupied by Marshall A. and Sallie Carson in 1928. Marshall A. Carson was a 
division track supervisor with the Southern Railway. 

416. Francis S. and Annie M. Bishop House 
527 West Second Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 411 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer, shed­
roof front porch with truncated paired posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, end 
chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, concrete retaining walL Francis S. Bishop 
worked at Isa Mae Candy Company. 

417. 1. Luther and Mamie L. Cely House 
529 West Second Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof front 
porch with tapered posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, end and interior 
chimneys, brick foundation, wood shingle sidillg, triangular eave brackets, concrete 
retaining walL J. Luther Cely was a traveling salesman. 

418. Carroll and Alberta R. Shelton House 
531 West Second Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 212 horizontal sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormer, shed-rooffront porch with truncated posts on brick piers, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, asbestos siding. Carroll Shelton was a salesman for J. O. Durham. 

418a. Carport/Shed 
531 West Second Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

Flat-roof carport with one-story, frame shed with single-leaf entry at east end. 

WEST THIRD AVENUE 

North Side 

419. RobertC. Warren House 
310 West Third Avenue, ca. 1900, Contributing Building 

One-story, Queen Anne cottage, frame, side-gable roofwith projecting front-gable, 2/2 
sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof wrap-around porch with turned posts and sawnwork 
brackets, interior chimney, brick piers infilled with brick to form a continuous 
foundation, weatherboards, rectangular gable vents, decorative diagonal wood boards in 
front gable. Michael J. Abernethy, an engineer with C & NW Railway, and his wife 
Lenora H. occupied the house in 1911. 



420. William and Rosa Hayes House 
312 West Third Avenue, ca. 1900 with ca. 1950 addition, Noncontributing 
Building 

One-story, Queen Anne cottage, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 2/2 sash, single-leaf entry, 
enclosed hip-roof front porch, interior chimney, brick piers infilled with brick to fonn a 
continuous foundation, Gennan siding, round gable vents, wood shingles and sawnwork 
ornament in gables, rear addition, ca. 1950 two-story brick addition with quoins, 616 sash 
and double-leaf entries on west side. William Hayes was a laborer. Janie Cooper also 
lived in the house in 1911. The building is now the Gaston County Republican 
Headquarters and Printers Alley. 

Vacant Lot 

421. First Associated Refonned Presbyterian Church Parsonage 
408 West Third Avenue, ca. 1951, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 616 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and fanlight, front-gable entry porch with paired square posts, end chimney, 
gable vents. Reverend Thomas H. McDill and his wife Emmie G. lived in the parsonage 
in 1951. 

Vacant Lot 

422. S. Everett and Ruth H. Moser House 
414 West Third Avenue, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story with half-story addition, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, engaged comer 
porch with square post, end and interior chimneys, gable vents, stuccoed, triangular eve 
brackets. S. Everett Moser was a dentist. 

422a. Shed 
414 West Third Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, wood panel siding, concrete block 
piers. 

423. Apartments 
504 West Third Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, three units, brick, side-gable roof, 616 sash, single-leaf entries, front-gable 
entry porches with square posts, vinyl siding in gables. 

424. Robert and Mildred VanSleen House 
508 West Third Avenue, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 



Two-story, brick, running bond, low hip roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof 
entry porch with metal posts, end chimney, quoins. Robert VanSleen was aU. S. Navy 
veteran. 

425. J. Andrew and Ellen Hendricks House 
510 West Third Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable front porch 
with truncated posts on brick piers and wood railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding, porte cochere. J. Andrew Hendricks was a carpenter. 

426. William and Clara L. Paybody House 
512 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, front-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, hexagonal entry porch 
with six-light sash and arched doorway, screened comer porch, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. William Paybody was a contractor. 

426a. Garage 
512 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, weatherboards with wood shingles 
in gables. 

427. John R. and Madge J. Spillers House 
514 West Third Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, running bond, low hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry with sidelights, front-gable roof entry porch with paired square posts, end chimney, 
vertical stretchers above windows. John R. Spillers was the manager of Swift & 
Company. 

427a. Garage 
514 West Third Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, board-and-batten siding. 

428. Clarence T. and Myrtle Carpenter House 
516 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof 
screened front porch with tapered posts on brick piers, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, wood shingle siding, triangular eave brackets. Clarence T. Carpenter was a 
bookkeeper at Dixon Mills and Trenton Cotton Mills. 

428a. Shed 



516 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, board-and-batten siding. 

429. Howard R. and Maude Thompson House 
518 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, front-gable roof, large 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, large 
front-gable dormers on east and west elevations, hip-roof front porch with square posts 
and projecting front-gable section at entry, east comer of porch is screened, interior 
chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards, exposed rafter ends. Howard R. Thompson 
worked at the Gaston County Register of Deeds office. 

429a. Shed 
518 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, shed roof, single-leaf entries, board-and-batten siding, exposed rafter 
ends. 

430. Britton E. and Martha Byrd House 
522 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, clipped-front-gable roof, 3/1 and 4/1 sash, single-leaf 
entry with sidelights, flat -roof entry porch with Tuscan columns, hip-roof partial-width 
front porch with tapered posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, interior chimney, 
brick foundation, weatherboards. Britton E. Byrd was the manager ofthe Millberries 
Company. 

430a. Garage 
522 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, weatherboards, long horizontal 
window in gable end. 

431. Basie o. and Inez McGhee House 
524 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, 
large front-gable dormer, engaged front porch with truncated posts on brick piers spanned 
by wood railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, triangular eave 
brackets, exposed rafter ends. Basie O. McGhee was a salesman for John L. Beal. 

432. Homer N. and Mary McClean Culbreath House 
526 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 



One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1, 3/1 and 2/2 sash, single-leaf entry, 
front-gable partial width front porch with grouped posts on brick piers, interior chimney, 
brick foundation, wood shingle siding with board-and-batten gable ends, triangular eave 
brackets, gable vents. Homer N. Culbreath was a bookkeeper for Whiteside & Company. 

432a. Shed 
526 West Third Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf entry, wood panel siding, exposed rafter 
ends. 

South Side 

433. Boy Scouts Piedmont Council Headquarters 
113 West Third Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

Two-story-on-basement, brick with decorative buttresses, flat roof with crenellated 
parapet and concrete coping, replacement 6/6 sash, arched panels and cast-stone keys 
above some windows, single-leaf entries with transoms, interior chimney. W. E. Garrison 
started raising money for the construction of a headquarters building for the Boy Scouts 
Piedmont Council in 1938. The Piedmont Council included Alexander, Burke, Caldwell, 
Catawba, Cleveland, Gaston, Iredell, Lincoln, McDowell, Polk and Rutherford Counties. 
The first floor houses offices; the second floor a large banquet hall. The building now 
serves as the offices of the Park Danson company. 

434. Duplex 
201-203 West Third Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, single-leaf entries, hip-roof dormer, front­
gable entry porches with square posts on brick piers, end chimneys, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding. L. C. Torrence, widow of Joseph Torrence, lived in this house in 1911. 

435. Cary C. and Kathleen Boshamer House 
207 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, III and 9/1 sash, single-leaf entry with stained-glass transom, 
hip-roof wrap-around porch with colunettes on brick piers, end chimneys, brick 
foundation, weatherboards. Cary C. Boshamer owned Boshamer & Company. 

436. James Y. and Bettie Miller House 
209 West Third Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with metal 
posts and railing, end chimneys, brick foundation, wide weatherboards, concrete block 
retaining walL James Y. Miller was a grocer. 



437. John E. and Annie E. McAllister House 
211 West Third Avenue, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, hip roof, III sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof dormer, hip-rooffront 
porch with Tuscan columns, brick foundation, vinyl siding, one-story rear addition, 
concrete block retaining wall. John E. McAllister was a contractor. 

438. Social Security Office 
215 West Third Avenue, ca. 1970, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, blonde brick accented with pebbled concrete cornice, flat roof, single-pane 
metal windows, double-leaf entry with sidelights and transom. This lot was previously 
occupied by the ca. 1924 Charles I. and Janie Loftin residence. 

439. CPA Offices 
223-227 West Third Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing, 6/6 and 6/9 sash, 
single-leaf entries with sidelights, front-gable dormers, front-gable entry porch with 
Tuscan columns, vinyl siding in gables, gable vents. This lot was previously occupied by 
the ca. 1911 Sarah H. Ford residence. 

440. Doctor's Office 
311 West Third Avenue, ca. 1965, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, hip roof, 6/6 sash, bay window, front-gable entry porch with paired 
posts, metal railing and wheelchair ramp, interior chimney. Dr. Larry D. Baker and Dr. 
Andrew C. Miller III built this office building. 

441. Duplex 
405-407 West Third Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick with stone accents, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, front-gable 
entry bay with arched single-leaf door, arcaded comer porch, facade and end chimneys, 
gable vents, stone retaining wall. Phanes A. Hughes, an assistant manager at Metropolitan 
Life Insurance Company, and his wife Louise H. lived in 405 in 1938; J. Kelly Long Jr., a 
dasser at the Cotton Receiving Agency, and his wife Marguerite, lived in 407. 

441a. Garage 
405-407 West Third Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick with open lattice, front-gable roof, two open garage bays, storage room 
with single-leaf entry in southeast comer. 

442. J. White and Carrie W. Ware House 
409 West Third Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, bay 
window, shed-roof entry and side porches with square posts, interior chimney, gable 
vents. J. White Ware worked in real estate, rentals and insurance and was ajustice of the 
peace and a notary. 

442a. Apartment 
409 West Third Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, small single-light windows, single-leaf entry, German 
vinyl siding, brick foundation. 

443. J. Edward and Mary Brison House 
413 West Third Avenue, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, side-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
dormer, shed-roof full-width front porch with paired truncated posts on brick piers 
spanned by brick kneewall, interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, German siding, 
triangular eave brackets. J. Edward Brison was vice-president of Kennedy Drug 
Company. This lot was previously occupied by the Loray Baseball Park. 

443a. Poolhouse 
413 West Third Avenue, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, open at north end, shed room at south end. 

444. Coite H. and Lillian C. Jones House 
415 West Third Avenue, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, 
projecting front-gable entry bay with arched single-leaf door, arcaded corner porch on 
east side, screened porch on west side, facade and interior chimneys, gable vents. Coite 
H. Jones was the manager of Metropolitan Insurance Company. 

444a. Garage 
415 West Third Avenue, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, brick veneer, hip roof, two garage bays. 

445. Samuel A. and Martha G. Kindley House 
501 West Third Avenue, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, low hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof entry porch with 
square posts, metal balustrade and single-leaf door at upper level of porch, end chimney, 
brick foundation, weatherboards, one-story side room on east elevation, shed-roof rear 
entry porch. Samuel A. Kindley was a salesman at Matthews-Belk. 



445a. Garage 
501 West Third Avenue, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, weatherboards. 

446. James G. and Maude Y. Jackson House 
505 West Third Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Foursquare, frame, low hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof dormer, 
front-gable entry hood, screened side porch, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. 
James G. Jackson was secretary-treasurer of Gastonia Mutual Building and Loan 
Association. 

447. Floyd A. and Helen S. Dellinger House 
507 West Third Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, L-plan with clipped gables, 6/6 and wood casement 
windows, projecting front-gable entry bay with arched single-leaf entry, front patio. 
Floyd A. Dellinger worked at Exide Battery Station. 

448. Albertus L. and Eula Atkins House 
509 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, brick, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, small front-gable 
over partial-width comer porch with square brick posts spanned by brick kneewall, 
facade chimney, triangular eave brackets. Albertus L. Atkins was the manager of the Life 
Insurance Company of Virginia. 

449. Dewey and Marie Todd House 
511 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
front porch with truncated paired posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, end and 
interior chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards, triangular eave brackets. City 
Directories listed no occupation for the Todds. 

450. T. J. Hayden House 
513 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
front porch with truncated posts on brick piers, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl 
siding, gable vents. Under construction in 1924, occupied by T. J. Hayden in 1928. 

451. John C. and Elizabeth Eck House 
515 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 



Two-story, frame, low hip roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with transom, flat-roof entry 
porch with grouped square posts and wood balustrade, flat-roof enclosed side porch with 
wood balustrade, end chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. John C. Eck was a 
certified public accountant at John Eck & Co. 

452. Walter T. and Annie Tucker House 
517 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, clipped-side-gable roof, 3/1 and 4/1 sash with original 
screens hinged at top of window trim, single-leaf entry, clipped-front-gable roof front 
porch with paired posts on brick piers, end chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, 
triangular eave brackets, porte cochere. Walter T. Tucker was the secretary-treasurer of 
Albion Grocery. 

452a. Garage 
517 West Third Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, clipped-front-gable roof, open garage bay, weatherboards. 

453. Reverand John W. and Ruth Carson House 
521 West Third Avenue, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/12 sash, 
single-leaf entry with sidelights and fanlight, front-gable dormers, front-gable entry porch 
with paired slender Tuscan columns, denticulated cornice, end chimneys, stuccoed rear 
addition. 

454. J. H. Miller House 
525 West Third Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
front porch with truncated posts on stuccoed brick piers spauned by stuccoed brick 
kneewall with recessed panel, stuccoed end chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle 
siding, gable vents. City Directories listed no occupation for J. H. Miller. 

WEST FOURTH AVENUE 

North Side 

455. J. P. Culp House 
208 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1900, Contributing Building 

One-story, Queen Anne cottage, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and transom, front-gable dormer, full-width front porch with turned posts 



spanned by railing and spindle frieze, interior chimneys, brick fonndation, vinyl siding, 
retaining wall. City Directories listed no occupation for J. P. Culp. 

455a. Shed 
208 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, double-leaf entry, vinyl siding. 

456. James W. and Vinnie S. Atkins House 
210 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof with side-gable wing, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
entry porch with square posts, interior chimneys, brick fonndation, weatherboards, 
retaining wall. James W. Atkins was president of Gazette Publishing Company. 

456a. Shed 
210 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, gambrel roof, double-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

456b. Carport 
210 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Structure 

Detached metal carport with front-gable roof. 

457. Albert G. and Frieda Myers House 
214 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, bnngalow, frame, side-gable roof, 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry, shed dormer 
across fayade, engaged front porch with square brick posts spanned by wood shingle 
kneewall, interior chimney, brick fonndation, wood shingle siding, half-timber and stucco 
gable ends. Albert G. Myers was vice-president of the Citizens National Bank. 

457a. Shed 
214 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, beaded wood siding, brick 
fonndation. 

457b. Carport 
214 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Structure 

Detached metal carport with front-gable roof. 

458. John E. and Annie McAlister House 
220 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 



One-and-one-half-story, frame, hip roof, 1/1 replacement sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and transom, large front-gable dormers, engaged front porch with truncated 
square posts on brick kneewall, interior chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding, 
gable vents. John E. McAllister was a general contractor. 

458a. Shed 
220 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, single-leaf entry, weatherboards, brick foundation. 

459. M. Clarence D. and Maunie Owen House 
222 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 6/9 sash, single-leaf entry, hip-roof front porch 
with metal posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding, shed room on east 
elevation, engaged porch with metal posts at north end of rear wing. M. Clarence D. 
Owen was ajeweler. 

460. Robert W. and Annie Yount House 
224 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with front gable over entry, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry 
with pilasters and pediment, brick stoop with metal railing, brick foundation, vinyl 
German siding, gable vents, one-story wing on east elevation. Robert W. Yount was a 
motorman for Piedmont & Northern Railway. 

461. Eliza M. Whitesides House 
512 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, side-gable roof, 12112 sash, single-leaf entry with pilasters, interior 
chimney. Eliza M. Whitesides was the widow of A. F. Whitesides. 

462. Roger P. and Minuie T. Washam House 
514 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, recessed single-leaf 
entry, projecting front-gable bay with bay window and arched window in gable, two 
front-gable dormers, denticulated coruice, stone end chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. Roger R. Washam owned Washam's Grocery. 

463. Durwood E. and Virginia Morrow House 
518 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and fanlight, front-gable entry porch with Tuscan columns, shed-roof side 



porch with square posts spanned by wood railing, end chimney. Durwood E. Morrow was 
Clerk of County Superior Court. 

464. Stacy L. Blanton House II 
522 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick and vinyl siding, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 111 
sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof entry porch with square post. City Directories list no 
occupation for Stacy L. Blanton. 

465. William H. and Nettie Schultz House 
524 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable dormer, 
engaged full-width front porch with paired posts on brick piers spanned by wood railing, 
end and interior chimneys, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, triangular eave 
brackets. William H. Schultz worked for Cocker Machinery and Foundry Company. 

466. Stacy L. Blanton House I 
526 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, front-gable partial-width porch with square posts, favade chimney, brick 
foundation, vinyl German siding, gable vents, rear addition. City Directories list no 
occupation for Stacy L. Blanton. 

467. Karl W. and Mildred L. Mull House 
528 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable bay, 111 replacement 
sash, projecting front-gable entry bay with arched single-leaf door, end chimney, gable 
vents, rear deck. Karl W. Mull was a bookkeeper for Sinclair Refining Company. 

South Side 

468. Harvey E. and Jean A. Taylor House 
205 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch 
with square posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. City 
Directories listed no occupation for the Taylors. 

469. Padgett-White House 
207 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1911, Contributing Building 



Two-story, frame, front-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, 
single-leaf entry, wrap-around porch with bracketed square posts, stuccoed interior 
chimneys, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, retaining wall. Robert T. and Ethel 
Padgett lived in this house in 1911. Robert T. Padgett's occupation was cleaning, 
pressing and repairing. The prominent architect Hugh White purchased the house in 
1920 upon his move from Columbia, South Carolina. He had a downtown office but 
eventually closed it and worked out of his home until his death in 1939. He added the 
second floor to the house, enlarged the first floor and added the porch. Hugh White's 
daughter Elizabeth Cathey lived in the house until 1989 . 

469a. Garage 
207 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open garage bay, weatherboards, brick foundation. 

470. Clyde C. Craig House 
211 West F ourth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, gable-on-hip roof with projecting front-gable bay, 1/1 sash, single-leaf 
entry, partial width front porch with square posts on brick piers, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, vinyl siding. Clyde C. Craig was the Gaston County treasurer and tax 
collector. 

470a. Carport/Shed 
211 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof shed with weatherboards; flat-roof carport supported 
by square posts. 

471. Daniel W. and Eliza Jane Padgett House 
219 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1914, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 111 sash, double-leaf entry, hip-roof dormer with 
wood shingle siding, enclosed front porch, interior chimneys, brick foundation, stuccoed, 
rear deck. Daniel W. Padgett was a butcher. 

472. G. N. Alexander House 
223 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1914, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entries (original entry has sidelights), 
hip-roof dormer with 111 sash, shed-roof full-width front porch with turned posts spanned 
by wood railing, stuccoed interior chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards. City 
Directories listed no occupation for G. N. Alexander. The house is now a duplex. 

473. F. Hoyt and Naomi Cunningham House 
225 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entries with sidelights, hip-roof 
dormer, engaged front porch with square wood shingle posts spanned by wood shingle 
kneewall, interior chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding. F. Hoyt Cunningham 
owned Cunningham & Company and was the secretary of Pinnix Land Company. The 
house is now a duplex. 

474. Thomas W. and Ruth S. Owen House 
515 West F ourth Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
Tuscan columns and metal railing, fac;:ade chimney, brick foundation, wide German 
siding, exposed rafter ends. Thomas W. Owen was a painter. 

474a. Garage 
515 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, two garage bays with double-leaf doors, German 
siding, brick foundation. 

475. Winecoff Duplex 
517-519 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

Two-story, brick, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, pilasters and 
pediment, fac;:ade and end chimneys, gable vents, enclosed side-gable side porch, one­
story rear frame addition, stone retaining wall. George C. Winecoff, a food broker, 
occupied 519 in 1938. G. Caldwell Winecoff Jr., a clerk, and his wife Estelle J. occupied 
517. 

476. Charles M. and Edna S. Moore House 
523 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1938, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, recessed entry 
porch with brick stoop and metal railing, gable vents, one-story rear wing. Charles M. 
Moore was a bookkeeper at Morowebb Cotton Mills Company. 

476a. Garage 
523 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, two open garage bays, weatherboards, shed addition 
with single-leaf entry and single-light window on west elevation. 

477. Albert VanSleen House 
525 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 212 horizontal sash, bay window, single-leaf entry, end 
and interior chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents, front-gable wing 
on west side. City Directories listed no occupation for Albert VanSleen. 

477a. Shed 
525 West Fourth Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

FIFTH AVENUE 

North Side 

478. Sidney and Flow Winget House 
202 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable slate roof, 8/8 sash, recessed entry with 
sidelights, interior brick chimney, attached gabled garage on west end, molded cornice. 
Sidney Winget was the president-treasurer of Winget's Inc., ajewelry and watch repair 
shop. 

479. William and Mamie Hoskins House 
210 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, portico 
with roof balustrade and paired square posts, gabled dormers on front roof slope, interior 
brick chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, flat-roof addition on east elevation. 
William Hoskins was an employee of Dunn Mills. 

480. Joseph B. and Sheila Roberts House 
212 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1925, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, half­
round portico with roof balustrade and columns, flat-roof enclosed side porch with roof 
balustrade on west elevation, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding. 
Joseph Roberts owned J. B. Roberts Company. 

481. John R. and Clara S. Rankin House 
304 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, slate hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights and transom, flat-roof portico with square paired posts, hip dormer, flanking 
side porches enclosed as sunrooms, interior brick chimney and chimney on west 
elevation. John R. Rankin was the vice president of Adams Ice and Coal, an active vice­
president of Citizens National Bank and a special agent for Jefferson Standard Life 
Insurance Company. 



48la. Garage Apartment 
304 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, slate hip roof, two garage bay, 6/6 sash. 

482. Harry and Cora S. Adams House 
308 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, Cape Cod, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with three-light 
transom, gabled dormers on front roof slope, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
vinyl and aluminum siding. Harry Adams was the president of Adams Ice and Coal 
Company, Inc. and vice-president of Gastonia Ice Cream Company. 

483. Karl and Ruth Mason House 
406 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, modem replacement windows, 
single-leaf entry, brick chimney on east gable end, enclosed porch. Karl Mason was an 
assistant purchasing agent with J. Lorin Mason. 

483a. Shed 
406 West Fifth Avenue, ca.1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, fixed-sash window, plywood siding. 

484. Samuel and Ila Lanier House 
408 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, replacement windows, single-leaf entry 
with gabled hood, brick foundation, weatherboards, shed addition on east elevation. City 
Directories did not list occupations for the Laniers. 

485. Samuel S. and Ida R. Shoford House 
410 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 and 22/1 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, partially enclosed wrap-around porch with weatherboarded posts and 
balustrade, wood shingled gabled dormer on front roof slope, brick chimney on east end, 
brick foundation, weatherboards with mitered comers. City Directories did not list 
occupations for the Shofords. 

486. Andrew J. and Emily Rankin House 
414 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 



One-story, Craftsman, front-gable roof with shed dormers on each side, roof extends 
forward over porch to incorporate shingled screened balcony, 33/1 sash, hip-roof porch 
with shingled posts and balustrade, single-leaf entry on side elevation of projection under 
the porch, interior brick chimney, weatherboards, exposed rafter ends. Andrew J. Rankin 
was the secretary-treasurer for Home Building and Loan Association. 

487. Edward T. and Ellen B. Suitzer House 
416 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, brick, side-gable roof, vinyl replacement windows, single-leaf 
entry with sidelights, inset full-width porch with brick posts and balustrade, shed dormer 
on front roof slope houses a balcony with heavy curved brackets, interior brick chimney. 
Edward T. Suitzer was the secretary-treasurer of A. A. Cloth Mills, Inc. 

487a. Garage 
416 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, one-bay, gable-front garage with vinyl siding. 

488. Julius and Wilma Reeves House 
502 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, clipped-side-gable roof, wood-frame windows on fayade, 
French doors, sidelights at single-leaf front door, low hip-roof porch with Tuscan 
columns and gable over entry bay, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, denticulated cornice, eave brackets. Julius Reeves was an employee with 
Arlington Mills. 

489. Thomas and Cynthia Surnmerrow House 
506 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, vinyl replacement windows, front-gable 
porch with eave brackets and battered brick posts on brick piers, brick chimney on east 
gable end, vinyl siding, shed addition on east elevation. Thomas Surnmerrowowned 
Surnmerrow Furniture Company. 

490. T. Grover and Esther Hope 
508 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, clipped-side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry with sidelights, 
gabled portico with columns, flat-roof side porch on east elevation, brick chimney on 
west end, brick foundation, aluminum siding. T. Grover Hope owned Hope Mercantile 
Company. 

491. Carroll C. and Fay Harmon House 
512 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1929, Contributing Building 



One-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, vinyl replacement windows, single­
leaf entry with sidelights, gabled portico with paired columns and arched ceiling, gabled 
hood over stoop on west elevation, brick chinmey on west gable end. Carroll C. Harmon 
was a traveling salesman. 

492. Lee and Electra S. Dixon House 
514 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable entry bay, 6/6 sash, 
round-arch front door, fayade chinmey. Lee Dixon was a lino operator with Gazette 
Publishing Company. 

492a. Garage 
514 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 2000, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, two garage bays, vinyl siding. 

493. Boyce M. and Ola Weir 
516 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, front-gable roof, 411 sash, original glazed front door, wrap­
around porch with paired posts on brick piers, large gabled wall dormers on both roof 
slopes, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, eave brackets, exposed 
rafter ends. Boyce M. Weir was a post office clerk. 

493a. Garage 
516 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable-roof, two garage bays, aluminum siding. 

494. Charles and Virginia Fisher House 
518 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, pedimented portico with paired columns over center bay, pedimented dormers 
on front roof slope, pedimented gable ends, brick chimney on east end, brick foundation, 
weatherboards. Charles Fisher was a cotton buyer. 

494a. Garage 
518 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, two garage bays, weatherboards. 

495. Paschal C. and Berthel M. McLain House 
520 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 



One-story, bungalow, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 611 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
porch with battered posts on brick piers and shingled balustrade, brick chimney on east 
elevation, brick foundation, wood shingle siding, eave brackets. Paschal C. McLain owed 
Parker and McLain. 

South Side 

496. Wesley A. and To=ie V. Daniel House 
201 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-and-a-half-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, recessed entry 
with pilasters and entablature, interior brick chimney, weatherboards on gable ends and 
on gabled dormers on the front roof slope, denticulated cornice. Wesley A. Daniel was 
the secretary-treasurer of Gray and Daniel, Inc. 

497. Jennie R. Huffsteler House 
205 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two- story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with 
sidelights, flat-roof entry portico with paired square posts, flat-roof addition on west 
elevation, brick chimney on west end, brick foundation, weatherboards. Jennie Huffsteler 
was the widow ofM. C. Huffsteler. 

498. Powell H. and Lillie Spurrier 
207 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof, vinyl replacement windows, pent roof 
across fac;ade includes a gabled hood over the front door, hip roof dormer, interior and 
end chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding, one-story gabled addition on east elevation. 
Powell H. Spurrier owned Spurrier and Company. 

499. Emery B. and Bessie Brandt Denny House 
213 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, side-gable roof, 8/8 and 6/9 sash, single-leaf entry with 
three-light transom, entrance located in gabled projecting bay, brick chimney on east end, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding, shed addition on east elevation. Emery B. Denny owned 
Mangum and Denny and was the president-treasurer of Gastonia Hotel Company. 

500. R. Cope and Virginia Gray House 
221 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, entrances located on side 
porches, two-story gabled wings project slightly from each gable end and a flat-roof side 
porch with roof balustrade is located on the house's front comers in front of these side 



wings, shed dormers on front roof slope, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
aluminum siding. R. Cope Gray owned Gastonia Ice Cream Company. 

501. H. Price and Sue R. Lineberger House 
305 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-and-a-half-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable slate roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry with leaded-glass sidelights and transom, flat-roof portico with paired columns, 
gabled dormers with arched windows, wide cornice, brick chimneys on both ends, side 
porch on east elevation. Price Lineberger was the secretary-treasurer of Rankin­
Lineberger Realty Company. 

502. House 
307 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-and-a-half-story, bungalow, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, engaged 
porch with battered posts on brick piers spanned by brick balustrade, gabled dormer on 
front roof slope, porte-cochere on west elevation, interior brick chimney, brick 
foundation, German siding, exposed rafter ends. 

503. Oscar and Kate Armstrong House 
309 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival-Craftsman, brick, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry with 
transom, hip-roof porch with Tuscan columns, hip-roof dormer, interior brick chimneys, 
vinyl-covered soffits. Oscar Armstrong was a bookkeeper. 

503a. Garage 
309 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, hip roof. 

504. Hadden S. and Mildred R. Mackie House 
403 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, front-gable roof, 10/1 and 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry, wrap­
around porch with square tapered posts, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, wood shingles and false beams in gable ends. Hadden S. Mackie was the 
president of Mountain View Mill. 

505. Roy H. and Harriet Parker House 
405 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, 8/1 sash, single-leaf entry, pedimented 
dormer on front roof slope, engaged porch with battered posts on brick piers, interior 



brick chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Dr. Roy H. Parker was a partner at Parker 
and McLain Vet Hospital. 

506. Henry M. and Lois Van Sleen House 
407 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, front-gable roof, 811 sash, wood casement windows in attic, 
single-leaf entry, hip-roof porch with battered posts on brick piers, gabled wings on side 
elevations, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards. Henry M. Van Sleen 
was a jeweler and optometrist. 

506a. Garage 
407 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete block, front-gable roof. 

507. Charles E. and Naomi Lyday House 
409 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, bungalow, frame, cross-gable roof, 3/1 sash, front-gable porch with battered 
posts on brick piers, brick chimney on east elevation, brick foundation, weatherboards. 
Dr. Charles E. Lyday was a physician. 

508. George A. and Berta Jenkins House 
411 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, front-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, gabled entry 
portico with modem metal posts, brick foundation, weatherboards. George A. Jenkins 
was a manager at Peoples Bonded Warehouse and Storage Company. 

509. Chauncey and Arora Highsmith House 
413 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 1/1 sash, single-leaf entry, inset full-width porch with square 
posts, gabled dormers, interior brick chimneys, brick foundation, weatherboards, exposed 
rafter ends. Dr. Chauncey Highsmith was a dentist. 

509a. Garage 
413 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, one-bay, shed roof, weatherboards. 

510. A. T. Cashion House 
415 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1920, Contributing Building 



One-story, bungalow, frame, side-gable roof, replacement windows, single-leaf entry, 
inset porch with vinyl-covered posts, shed dormer, brick end chimney, brick foundation, 
vinyl siding. City directories did not list an occupation for A. T. Cashion. 

511. Arthur C. and Annie 1. Jones House 
501 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Tudor Revival, Flemish bond brick, side-gable slate roof with 
front-gable wing and front-gable entry bay, leaded-glass windows with diamond-shaped 
panes, Gothic arch entry framed with cast stone molding, large stuccoed shed dormer on 
front roof slope with two levels of windows, pent roof across west gable end, interior 
brick chimney. Arthur C. Jones was ajudge in the municipal court and an attorney. 

511 a. Garage 
501 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, front-gable slate roof, two garage bays with a pent roof, shed dormers 
that match the house. 

511b. Shed 
501 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, wood shingle siding. 

512. Oscar 1. and Pear Sappenfield House 
509 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1926, Contributing Building 

One-story, Dutch Colonial Revival, frame, gambrel roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, large 
shed dormer on front roof slope, inset front porch at northeast comer, side porch on west 
elevation, brick chimney on west end, brick foundation, weatherboards with mitered 
comers. Oscar 1. Sappenfield was an employee of Rankin Mills. 

513. Francis A. and Myrtle Whitesides House 
515 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, cross-gable roof, 4/1 sash, glazed front door with sidelights, 
deep front porch with squat posts on tall brick piers, matching porte-cochere on east 
elevation, interior and end chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Francis A. 
Whitesides was the secretary-treasurer for City Lumber Company. 

513a. Garage 
515 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1922, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, sliding wooden garage doors, flush board siding. 

514. Jack Harper House 



517 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1930, Contributing Building 

One-story, Period Cottage, frame, front-gable roof, replacement windows, gabled entry 
bay with single-leaf entry flanked by flat pilasters and pediment, large shed dormers on 
both roof slopes, arcaded side porch, brick foundation, vinyl siding. City Directories did 
not list an occupation for Jack Harper. 

514a. Garage 
517 West Fifth Avenue, ca. 1990, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, vinyl siding. 

WEST SIXTH AVENUE 

North Side 

515. Leslie A. and Harriet Bradford House 
212 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at 
west end of facade, recessed comer entry at east end of facade, vinyl replacement 
windows, interior brick stack, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gabled additions at rear, 
including garage. Leslie Harriet was a station operator at the City Light, Water, and 
Sewerage Department. 

516. Morris and Ann Levinson House 
310 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay at west 
end of facade, recessed front porch under flared eave across the remainder of the facade, 
6/6 sash, exterior chimney on north elevation, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Morris 
Levinson was the president and manager of Morris Jewelry Company. 

517. Yates and Ann W. Mason House 
318 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, hip roof with projecting front-gable bay at west 
end of facade, shed roof over entry, 6/6 sash, original screen door, interior brick chimney, 
brick foundation, asbestos siding. Yates Mason was a special representative of the 
Jefferson Standard Life Insurance Company. 

518. M. C. Abernathy House 
404 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with projecting gabled bay on east elevation, 6/6 sash, 
single-leaf entry, enclosed front-gable entry porch, interior brick chimney, brick 



kneewall, board-and-batten siding, eave brackets. M. C. Abernathy was the widow of J. 
T. Abernathy and a stenographer. 

518a. Apartment 
404 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, plywood siding. 

519. Lawrence S. and Sadie Rankin House I 
406 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 3/1 sash, single-leaf 
entry, screened shed-roof front porch with square posts, interior brick chimney, brick 
foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents. Lawrence S. Rankin was the vice-president of 
the Rankin-Lineberger Realty Company. 

519a. Garage 
406 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, one garage bay with roll-up door, single-leaf entry, 
4/4 sash, end chimney, wood shingle siding. 

520. Lawrence S. and Sadie Rankin House II 
408 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Dutch Colonial, frame, gambrel roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
entry porch with slender Tuscan columns, shed dormer across fa9ade, pent roof above 
first story, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, wood shingle siding. Lawrence S. 
Rankin was the vice-president of the Rankin-Lineberger Realty Company. 

520a. Garage 
408 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, one open garage bay single-leaf entry, 4/4 sash, end 
chimney, wood shingle siding, addition with one open garage bay and shed room on west 
elevation. 

521. Henry L. and Margaret Bass House 
410 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, Craftsman, frame, clipped-side-gable roof with projecting clipped-front-gable 
bay, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, clipped-gable attic vent dormer, screened shed-roof front 
porch with square posts, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, eave brackets. 
Hemy L. Bass was a buyer for Gastonia Cotton Company. 

521a. Shed 



410 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, vinyl siding. 

522. Plato and Catherine Pearson House 
412 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, partially-enclosed front 
porch with square brick posts, original porte cochere at east end of porch, new porte 
cochere at rear (northeast) comer, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards and Gennan siding. Plato Pearson was a grocer with a store at 721 West 
Airline Road. 

523. Giles L. and Janie Ratchford House 
502 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, III sash, single-leaf entry, screened front-gable roof entry 
porch, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents, exposed 
rafter ends. Giles L. Ratchford was the vice-president of Gastonia Transfer Company. 

523a. Shed 
502 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1919, Contributing Building 

One-story, shed roof, single-leaf entry sheltered by bracketed shed-roof hood, wood panel 
siding, exposed rafter ends. 

524. Benjamin E. and Edith K. Abernathy House 
504 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry 
with reeded pilasters, interior brick chimney, brick foundation, wide weatherboards. 
Benjamin E. Abernathy was a pattemmaker at Piedmont Iron Works. 

525. Charles H. and Martha W. Ross Duplex 
506-508 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, clipped-side-gable roof with projecting clipped-front-gable two-story 
central bay, III sash, single-leaf entries, shed-roof entry porches with square posts on 
both sides offa\tade, interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, gable vents. 
Charles H. Ross was a manufacturing superintendent at Ranlo Manufacturing Company, 
Modena Cotton Mills, Pricilla Spinning Company, Spencer Mountain Mills, Hardin 
Manufacturing Company. 

526. Duplex 
510-512 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 



One-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, V-plan, gabled roof, 6/6 sash, recessed single-leaf 
entries, gable vents. Jesse Caldwell, a gynecologist, and his wife Martha lived in 510 in 
1953. Fred J. Rawlings Jr., who worked at the Rawlings Company (electric appliances 
and gifts) and his wife Beatrice L.lived in 512 with Nell Thompson, a widow, in 1953. 

527. Leon and Virginia Y. Alexander House 
514 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, side-gable roof, 616 sash, single-leaf 
entry, two gabled dormers, front-gable entry porch with metal posts, interior brick 
chimney. Leon Alexander was the manager of Wi x Accessories (oil filters). 

528. Julius T. and Mary S. Sanders House 
516 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, front-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay 
and gabled wing on west elevation, 616 sash, recessed single-leaf entry, interior brick 
chimney, gable vents. Julius T. Sanders was a lawyer with an office at 195 West Main 
Avenue. 

Vacant Lot 

South Side 

529. Samuel and Mamie Sapperstein House 
205 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 411 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch 
with slender Tuscan columns, end chimney, brick foundation, narrow weatherboards, 
cornice returns. Samuel Sapperstein worked at Crown Tailoring Company. 

530. Louis and Marian Schlanger House 
207 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1931, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1 sash, single-leaf entry, hip dormer with sawtooth 
cornice, flat-roof front porch with slender Tuscan columns, end chimney, brick 
foundation, wood shingle siding. Louis Schlanger worked at the Cinderella Shop (shoes). 

531. Benjamin M. and Irene W. Planer 
209 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1953, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
metal posts, metal awnings, end and interior chinmeys, brick foundation, asbestos siding, 
gable vents. Benjamin M. Planer was a clerk at the Peoples Surplus Store. 

531a. Shed 



209 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1970, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, low front-gable roof, single-leaf entry, wood panel siding. 

532. Johnathan and Mary Kiliveros House 
211 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roof, 6/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
tapered brick posts, end chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, enclosed rear porch with 
1/1 sash. Mary Kiliveros worked at the New York Cafe. 

533. House 
213 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, brick foundation, aluminum 
siding. 

534. John Howe House 
303 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 4/4 and 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry 
with sidelights, two eyebrow donners with fanlights, front-gable entry porch with paired 
square posts, gabled side porch with paired square posts and wood railing, end chimney, 
denticulated cornice, cornice returns, gable vents, one-story rear flat-roof wing. John 
Howe was a cotton classer at Textiles Inc. 

534a. Garage 
303 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, sliding wood garage doors with glazed panes over 
panels, Gennan siding, gable vents. 

535. George F. and Annie H. Henry House 
309 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 4/1, 8/1 and 12/1 sash, 
single-leaf entry with sidelights, front-gable entry porch with Tuscan columns, flat-roof 
porch on west side enclosed as sunroom, stuccoed end and interior chimneys, stuccoed 
foundation, veatherboards, series of rear additions. George F. Henry was a bookkeeper at 
T.A. Henry. 

536. Joe L. and Helen R. Barnett House 
311 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 



Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 8/1, 9/1 and 12/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable 
entry porch with square posts and wood railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
aluminum siding. Joe L. Barnett was a bookkeeper at D. M. Jones and Company. 

537. Nancy E. Jenkins House 
401 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, frame, side-gable roof, 5/1 sash, single-leaf entry, wrap-around porch with 
square posts and wood railing, large shed dormers on front and rear elevations, interior 
chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, shed addition on west elevation. Nancy E. 
Jenkins was the widow of David Jenkins. 

538. David L. and Louise V. Struthers House 
403 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, gable-on-hip roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof front porch 
with square posts, interior chimneys, brick foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents. 
David L. Struthers worked in the City Manager's Office. 

539. Frank McLand House 
405 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof front porch with 
square posts, shed dormer with exposed rafter ends, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
weatherboards, gable vents, eave brackets. Frank McLand sold insurance. 

539a. Garage 
405 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, open two-car garage bay, German vinyl siding. 

540. John M. and Clemmie Howard House 
407 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, VI sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
metal posts and railing, shed dormer with exposed rafter ends, interior chimney, brick 
foundation, aluminum siding, gable vents, eave brackets. John M. Howard worked at the 
Howard and Ware Agency. 

541. Lurther E. and Julia Hartness 
409 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with gabled wing on east elevation, 111 sash, single­
leaf entry, shed-roof front porch with front gable at western end and square posts on brick 
piers spanned by wood railing, interior chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl German siding, 
gable vents, rear shed addition. City Directories list no occupations for the Hartnesses. 



542. Ellen Tatlock House 
411 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-and-one-half-story, frame, side-gable roof, 111,6/1, 12/1 and 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entries, engaged front porch with square posts, shed dormers with exposed rafter ends on 
front and rear elevations, interior chimney, brick foundation, weatherboards, gable vents, 
eave brackets, gabled one-story rear wing with entry porch. Ellen Tatlock was the widow 
of Squire Tatlock. The house is now a duplex. 

543. Altman R. and Margaret Rice House 
501 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with gabled wing on east elevation, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, 
recessed single-leaf entry flanked by bay windows in projecting hip-roof bay, screened 
flat-roof porch with square posts on east elevation, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
wood shingle siding, rear addition. Altman R. Rice owned Rice's Feed and Seed Store. 

543a. Garage 
501 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf entry, wood shingle siding. 

544. Stephen B. and Eunice Dolley House 
505 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, hip roof, 111 and 3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch 
with arched opening and vinyl siding, vinyl-sided shed-roof rear addition. Stephen B. 
Dolley was an attorney and president of the Gastonia Lions Club. 

545. Ramsey C. and Virginia Bosserman House 
507 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with four-light transom, 
brick stoop with metal railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable 
vents. Ramsey C. Bosserman was a salesman. 

546. Key P. and Mary Mott House 
509 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof with gabled wing on west elevation, 6/6 sash, single­
leaf entry, shed-roof entry porches on east and west sides of house, projecting hexagonal 
bay at east comer offayade, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl German siding, 
gable vents. Key P. Mott was the president-treasurer ofMott Motor Company. 

547. Thomas o. and Ellen D. Starr House 



511 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof front porch with 
paired square posts, interior chimney, brick foundation, Gennan siding, gable vents. City 
Directories list no occupations for the Starrs. 

548. Apartments 
515-519 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

Two-story, three units, brick, front-gable roof with gabled wing on east elevation, 6/6 
sash, single-leaf entries, front-gable entry porches with square posts, rear addition. 

548a. Garage 
515-519 West Sixth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, front-gable roof, open garage bay, vinyl siding in gables. 

WEST EIGHTH AVENUE 

North Side 

549. House 
204 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, replacement door, front-gable entry porch 
with replacement square posts and wood railing, interior chimney, brick foundation, 
Gennan siding. 

549a. Garage 
204 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, sliding garage door, brick foundation, Gennan siding. 

550. Lloyd and Jennie Hope House 
210 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/1 and 9/1 sash, single-leaf entry with six panes over 
panels, front-gable porch with replacement metal posts and railing, end chimney, brick 
piers infilled with brick to fonn a continuous foundation, Gennan siding with board-and­
batten siding in gables, eave brackets, rear addition. 

551. House 
212 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, clipped-side-gable roof with front-gable bay, 4/4, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, 
replacement door, front-gable entry porch with square posts and wood railing, concrete 



block foundation, aluminum siding, oriented sideways on lot. Moved to this location after 
1959. 

552. John Boggs House 
214 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 212 horizontal sash, single-leaf entry with three panes 
over panels, front-gable porch with original square posts, end chimney, brick piers 
infilled with brick to fonn a continuous foundation, Gennan siding with board-and-batten 
siding in gables, eave brackets, shed-roof rear entry porch. John Boggs was the pastor of 
South Marietta Baptist Church. 

The following section of West Eighth Avenue was called Carpenter Avenue until 
sometime around 1950. 

553. Grafton W. and Edith A. Spargo House 
506 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf 
entry, interior brick chimney. Grafton Spargo was a salesman with Sterchi Brothers. 

553a. Garage 
506 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single garage bay with modem roll-up door, Gennan 
siding. 

554. William Hogans House 
508 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, vinyl replacement windows, 
shed-roof hood over single-leaf entry, interior brick chimney and brick chimney on west 
end, brick foundation, Gennan siding, rear ell. City Directories listed no occupation or 
William Hogans. 

555. Grady and Pearl I. Haynes House 
510 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry sheltered by bracketed hood, 
inset porch, fa9ade chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Grady Haynes was a 
salesman for Orange Crush Bottling Company. 

555a. Garage 
510 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf entry, Gennan siding. 



SS6. Raymond and Martha G. Thornburg House 
S12 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, single­
leaf entry, brick stoop with metal railing, interior chinmey, brick foundation, vinyl siding, 
side deck. Raymond Thornburg was a post office clerk. The couple is listed in the 1942 
city directory as Froneberger. 

SS6a. Garage 
S12 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, corrugated metal shed roof, roll-up door, wood panel siding. 

SS7. Norman T. and Mary S. Payne House 
S 14 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof porch with metal posts and railing, interior and end 
chinmeys, brick foundation, vinyl siding. Norman T. Payne was a parts manager for 
Carpenter and Robinson Motor Company. 

SS7a. Carport 
S14 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Structure 

One-story, metal carport with front-gable roof supported by square posts. 

SS7b. Garage 
S 14 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, asbestos siding. 

South Side 

SS8. George and Jennie Rider House 
207 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1934, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof, 111 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
square brick posts, porte cochere with square brick posts and vinyl siding in gable, 
interior and end chimneys, gable vents, gabled rear wing with entrance on east elevation. 

SS9. House 
211 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 2004, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 6/6 sash, single-leaf 
entry, gabled dormers, engaged porch with Tuscan columns, brick foundation, vinyl 
siding, gable vents. 



560. J. Bishop and Alice Bouldin House 
215 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1924, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, hip roofwith projecting front-gable bay, 4/4 sash, single-leaf entry, 
hip-roof porch with Tuscan columns, interior chimney, brick piers infilled with brick to 
form a continuous foundation, weatherboards, gable vents. J. Bishop Bouldin was a 
grocer with a store on York Street. 

The following section of West Eighth Avenue was called Carpenter Avenue until 
sometime around 1950. 

561. Herman H. and Clara M. Parrott House 
503 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, inset porch with square 
posts, brick foundation, asbestos siding, gable vents, rear addition. Herman H. Parrott 
was a driver with Akers Motor Lines. 

562. John W. and Gladys W. Newcombe House 
505 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof porch with metal posts and railing, interior chimney, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. John W. Newcombe was a salesman with W. 
D. Lawson and Company. 

562a. Shed 
505 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, metal, low gable roof. 

562b. Shed 
505 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1980, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, metal, low gable roof. 

563. Ralph T. and Barbara D. Thornburg House 
509 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing, 
6/6 and 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry, shed-roof porch with square posts, interior chimney, 
brick foundation, vinyl siding, rear addition. Ralph T. Thornburg owned the Bus Station 
Soda Shop. Barbara D. Thornburg was a clerk at Textiles, Inc. 

563a. Shed 
509 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 



One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf door, vinyl siding. 

564. Edward W. and Veronica S. Anderson House 
511 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
3/1 sash, single-leaf entry, flat-roof porch with metal posts, railing and roof balustrade, 
interior chimney, brick foundation, aluminum siding. Edward W. Anderson was in the U. 
S.Army. 

564a. Garage 
511 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, double-leaf door, German siding. 

565. George and Helen T. Willis House 
513 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, Minimal Traditional, frame, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable bay, 
6/6 sash, single-leaf entry sheltered by gabled hood, interior and end chimneys, brick 
foundation, aluminum siding. George Willis was a clerk with Gulf Oil Company. 

565a. Garage 
513 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf door, aluminum siding, gable vents. 

566. Nelson E. and Dorothy S. Parks House 
515 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry, front-gable entry porch with 
columns, interior chimney, brick foundation, vinyl siding, gable vents. Nelson E. Parks 
was the president-secretary-treasurer of the Valet Men's Shop. 

566a. Garage 
515 West Eighth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, concrete, front-gable roof, roll-up garage door, weatherboards in gable ends. 

WEST TENTH A VENUE 

North Side 

567. Francis W. and Tempie M. Mangum House 
202 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1949, Contributing Building 



One-story, Minimal Traditional, brick, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, wood 
casement and multi-light picture windows, single-leaf entry, interior brick chimney. 
Francis W. Mangum was a classer at Kincaid Cotton. Tempie M. Mangum was a case 
worker with the Department of Public Welfare. 

568. John K. and Marguerite C. Long House 
204 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof with front-gable wing, 6/6 and 8/8 
sash, single-leaf entry, gabled portico with arched ceiling and columns, gabled dormers 
on front roof slope, gabled wing on east elevation, brick chimneys between main block 
and gabled wings, vinyl siding. John K. Long Jr. owned Carolina Cotton Classing 
Agency. 

569. Richard and Elaine McPhail House 
218 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with 
transom, inset entry porch with square posts, hipped dormers with German siding, brick 
chimney on east gable end, hyphen connects to detached garage. Richard McPhail was 
the treasurer for Finer Fabrics Company, Inc. 

569a. Garage 
218 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

One-story, brick, front-gable roof, two garage bays. 

570. Harold and Panelthia Mercer House 
304 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, bay window with 
scalloped and denticulated cornice, recessed single-leaf entry with louvered screen door, 
pilasters and entablature, brick stoop with metal railing, interior and fayade chimneys, 
brick foundation, weatherboards, denticulated cornice, enclosed side porch with roof 
balustrade, two-bay basement garage. Harold Mercer was a general manager with 
Firestone Textiles, Inc. 

570a. Shed 
304 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1945, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, single-leaf door, weatherboards. 

571. William H. and Katherine R. Kelley House 
312 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 



One-story, tripartite, hip roof, brick, 8/8 sash, arched single-leaf entry, brick stoop and 
metal railing, interior chinmeys, modillion cornice, quoins, west wing is single-bay 
garage. William H. Kelley was the president of Holsum Baking Company. 

South Side 

572. James T. and Eleanor K. Comer House 
201 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1954, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, brick, hip roof, 8/8 sash, single-leaf entry with pilasters and 
entablature, brick chinmeys on each end of the main block, quoins, hip roof wing and 
gabled garage wing on east elevation. The Cromers owned J. T. Cromer and Company. 
James T. Cromer also worked for Jefferson Standard Life Insurance Company. 

573. David R. and Mary L. LaFar House 
205 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1942, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, Flemish bond brick, hip roof with gable over central 
pavilion, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with pilasters, transom and pediment, brick chinmeys 
on east and west elevations, quoins, cartouche in stuccoed pediment, one-story hip-roof 
garage wing on west elevation. David R. LaFar Jr. was a manger at the Modena Plant of 
Ranlo Manufacturing Company. 

574. AlfS. and Mary E. Robinson House 
209 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1940, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with 
broken pediment and rectangular transom, one-story gabled screened porch on east 
elevation, one-story gabled wing with dormer on west elevation, quarter lunette windows 
in gables, chinmeys on gable ends of main block, brick foundation, weatherboards with 
mitered comers. AlfRobinson was the president of Parkdale Mills, Inc. 

575. Robert and Jennie M. Pinnix House 
215 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1928, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, hip roof with central gabled pavilion, 6/6 and 8/8 
sash, double-leaf entry surmounted by transom and segmental arch, shield-shaped 
window in front gable, inset side porch, brick chinmey on west elevation, brick 
foundation, wide weatherboards. Robert Pinnix was a general contractor. When Tenth 
Avenue was first listed in the city directory in 1934, Robert Pinnix was the only name on 
the street; no addresses were given. 

575a. Garage 
215 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1950, Contributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof, two garage bays, brick chinmey flue, 6/6 sash. 



576. House 
301 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1936, Contributing Building 

Two-and-one-half-story, Colonial Revival, brick, side-gable roof, 6/6 and 8/8 sash, 
single-leaf entry with sidelights and fanlight, two-story engaged portico with square 
posts, pilasters and arched cornice, interior and end chimneys, cornice returns, two-story 
wing on east elevation, one-story hyphen connects house to two-bay garage. 

577. J. Lander and Esther M. B. Gray Jr. House 
311 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1947, Contributing Building 

Two-story, Colonial Revival, frame, side-gable roof, 6/6 sash, single-leaf entry with 
leaded-glass sidelights and transom, interior chimneys, brick foundation, vinyl siding, 
denticulated cornice, one-story wing on west elevation, one-story screened porch on east 
elevation. J. Lander Gray was manager of Gaston Products and president-treasurer of 
Gray Mills, Inc. 

Vacant Lot 

578. House 
401 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, Ranch, brick and vinyl siding, side-gable roof, 111 windows, single-leaf entry, 
engaged entry porch with metal post. 

578a. Carport 
401 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, front-gable roof. 

578b. Shed 
401 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1960, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, frame, side-gable roof, engaged porch. 

579. House 
417 West Tenth Avenue, ca. 1991, Noncontributing Building 

One-story, brick, side-gable roof with projecting front-gable wing, 4/4 and 616 sash, 
single-leaf entry, engaged entry porch with tapered post on brick pier and railing, gable 
vents, vinyl in gable ends, eave brackets. 


